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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

5 YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND KEY RATIOS 

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
Turnover £'000s 83,513 80,140 68,153 54,612 53,576 
Operating surplus £'000s 22,248 22,737 16,246 12,954 12,681 
Surplus for the financial year after tax £'000s 16,145 16,115 9,259 6,191 7,095 

Statement of Financial Position 
Tangible assets £'000s 537,358 517,508 507,863 409,984 398,581 
Social housing and other grant £'000s 221,687 222,903 264,875 211,913 209,087 
Loans repayable £'000s 187,160 165,495 150,112 135,542 134,147 
Capital & reserves £'000s 145,303 133,478 116,403 62,670 555,329 

Accommodation Figures 
Total housing stock owned and managed Units 16,365 16,239 16,731 12,474 12,434 

All figures have been extracted from current and prior years audited financial statements. 

Turnover has increased by 4% during the year, primarily due to the expansion of Isas 
Complete Support and income from shared ownership property sales. As we have incurred 
a number of one-off costs in relation to the amalgamation and created a provision for the 
impairment of a number of properties that we plan to re-develop, our operating cost has 
increased by 3%. Overall we have reported a modest increase on our overall surplus 
generated in the year. 
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Our balance sheet strength has increased annually through steady investment into current 
homes and the development of new homes. The cost of homes in our balance sheet is in 
excess of half a £billion. 
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1505 HOUSING LIMITED 

5 YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND KEY RATIOS 
(CONTINUED) 

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Operating margin % 27 28 27 27 27 
( surplus to turnover) 

Voids and bad debts % 1.7% 1.8% 1.9% 2.8% 2.6% 
(as % of rent and service charge receivable) 

Rent and service charge arrears Days 12.4 12.0 17.0 16.0 11.0 
( current rent and service charge arrears divided 

by net rent and service charges receivable, 

rrultlplied by 365 days) 

Gearing % 51% 46% 43% 49% 51% 
(loans as % of grant plus reserves) 

All figures have been extracted from current and prior years audited financial statements. 

Our operating margin has marginally reduced mainly due to one off costs relating to the 
amalgamation and also as a result of a provision for the impairment of housing properties 
which we are planning to demolish and re-develop. 
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Our gearing ratio has increased this year as we use our balance sheet capacity to build more 
homes with a reducing public subsidy. During the year we arranged £34 million of additional 
funding from the Affordable Housing Finance scheme. We plan to provide an additional 
3,072 homes over the next 5 years. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

REPORT FROM THE GROUP CHAIR AND GROUP CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 

Housing associations are operating in unprecedented times. Central Government policy in all 
areas is focusing on economic restraint. This means a greater emphasis on value for money 
and efficiency, and with that a progressive reduction in welfare benefit, rent control and less 
support from local and regional agencies for the less well off. 

Other changes such as 'pay to stay', the pilots for 'Right to Buy', the social rent settlement 
post 2015, and the question mark over the status of housing associations, and whether they 
remain public bodies, have created a more volatile and flexible external environment. 
Solutions to the challenges are emerging but they are increasingly more diverse in nature 
and require greater entrepreneurship, representing a significant break with the past. 

At the same time, local government is changing. Constraints on funding are forcing change 
at the local level with local authorities now considering how they can work more closely 
together, either to share services or, in an increasing number of cases, introduce common 
management arrangements. Many of the services that local government provided are under 
threat due to expenditure cuts and new models of service continuously need to be 
developed, particularly involving local communities and prioritising their views in service 
redesign. 

The forward prognosis suggests further challenges, with the emphasis on continuing to 
reduce central government annual deficit and long term borrowing. The impact of Brexit 
remains unknown but is likely to include further progressive measures designed to optimise 
the capacity of the sector. 

The combination of welfare reform, reduction in care and support to the most vulnerable, and 
increases in energy costs, are all factors that are increasing personal hardship to many of 
our tenants and customers, placing greater strain on our services and resources. 

At the same time, the demand for housing grows in the north east driven by demographic 
changes, affordability issues and the need for a better range of housing options. An ageing 
population means that a significant proportion of household growth will be in the over 65 
cohort. This means that as housing organisations we are required to think and act differently. 

ln response to these challenges, lsos Housing amalgamated with Cestria Community 
Housing and Derwentside Homes to become Karbon Homes on 3 April 2017. We are 
confident that by combining the collective strengths into one new company, we can create a 
financially strong, more flexible and resilient organisation that is sufficiently versatile and 
robust to respond to changes to meet the needs of our customers. 

As a result of combining businesses, we have estimated efficiencies rising to a recurring £3 
million per annum (around £10 million over the first 5 years). This is a minimum ambition and 
will be delivered over the first 5 years, thereafter (years 6 to 1 O) we estimate that we will 
deliver a further £17.5m. 

Over the next five years, our financial strength will enable us to deliver a programme of 3,072 
new homes up to 2022. This will see us invest just over £347 million in new homes, £66 
million of which will be funded by government grant. The balance will be met by our own 
resources supplemented by additional debt funding and cash receipts from the sale of our 
less sustainable properties. 
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150S HOUSING LIMITED 

We know too that there is a need to continually invest in our existing properties and some 
£208 million will be invested into boiler, kitchen, bathroom and window replacement 
programmes, amongst other things, over the next five years ensuring that our properties 
remain fit for purpose and meet the changing expectations of our customers. The costs of 
these replacement programmes will be met entirely from our own resources, so our ability to 
invest when we need to will depend on continued surplus and strong levels of reserves. 

Our success relies on the effective collaboration between our Boards, the Executive Team, 
all managers and staff, our involved residents and our partners and is testimony to their 
outstanding commitment. We do not take this for granted and extend our thanks and 
appreciation to everyone who has contributed, and will continue to contribute into the future 
of Karbon. 

Paul Fiddaman 

Group Chief Executive 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

- OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Overview of Business 

Isas Housing Limited was registered with the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) as a 
registered provider of affordable housing. lt was the parent of Cestria Community Housing 
Association Limited, which was also registered with the HCA Both associations were 
charitable and were registered as societies under the Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies Act 2014. 

Isas Housing Limited engaged in commercial activities through its subsidiary companies: 
Next Level Developments (residential development), Isas Developments Limited 
(development services) and Isas Complete Support Limited (cost sharing vehicle), a 
partnership with Two Castles Housing Association and Byker Community Trust Limited. 
More detail of the Group's structure is provided in note 14. 

On 3 April 2017 Isas Housing Limited amalgamated with Cestria Community Housing Limited 
and Derwentside Homes Limited to form a new company called Karbon Homes Limited. 
Karbon Homes Limited ('Karbon Homes') also has charitable status, registered as a society 
under the Co-operative and Community Benefits Act 2014. The principal activity of Karbon 
Homes is also the provision of affordable homes for rent and shared ownership, together 
with housing support for vulnerable and elderly residents. Karbon Homes also engages in 
commercial activities via its subsidiary companies. 

Karbon Homes is responsible for establishing the Group's overall policies and strategies, for 
monitoring compliance with Group values and performance against Group targets, within a 
clearly defined framework of delegation and system of control. 

The Group's head office is based in Newcastle upon Tyne and its properties are primarily in 
the North East of England. 

Objectives 

The vision of Karbon Homes is 'We will be financially strong, flexible and resilient and one of 
the biggest contributors of new homes amongst northern housing associations, helping 
people meet their aspirations across a range of tenures. Our services will enable customers 
to lead successful, independent lives, sustain our business and communities and make 
maximum use of technology. Our customers will be very satisfied and our brands seen as a 
guarantee of high quality'. 

'We will improve continuously and be highly efficient, helped by additional income from our 
successful commercial activities. We will be a valued regional provider of services, including 
through cost-sharing, and welcome others into our Group. We will have a strong reputation 
and significant influence regionally and nationally and will grow throughout the north east and 
beyond as the first choice for customers, partners and employees'. 

Our Purpose -To provide a strong foundation for life 
This is the reason we exist as an organisation. 

Our Promise - The possibility to develop the life you want 
This is what we offer our customers. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Our Characteristics - A strong business head and a strong social heart 
This is who we are as a business, our personality. We are efficient, effective, agile and 
sustainable, as we/! as being caring, friendly, understanding and fair. 

Our strategic aims are: 

1. To provide as many good quality homes as we can 

2. To deliver excellent, modern services to all our customers 

3. To build successful and sustainable communities 

4. To grow the business and its reputation 

5. To maximise capacity to deliver our ambitions 

To measure the success of the Interim Strategic Plan, we will develop an action plan based 
around 'smart' objectives, against each of the strategic aims and ensure that our objectives 
are carefully and realistically prioritised to match resources. The action plan will form the 
basis of employee objectives set through our annual appraisal processes to ensure our staff 
give time to reflect on our strategic vision and priorities and to demonstrate how they 
contribute. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Financial Performance in the Period 

The detailed results for the year are set out in the Group's Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on page 36 and the notes to the financial statements on pages 43 to 
90. The following table provides a summary of the Group's results: 

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2016 

Turnover 
Operating surplus 
Surplus on Sale of Property and Other assets 
Net interest payable and taxation 

£'000s 
83,513 
22,248 
1,860 
7,963 

£'000s 
80,140 
22,737 
1,692 
8,314 

Surplus for the year after tax 16,145 16,115 

Operating margin(%) 27% 28% 

Turnover has increased year on year principally as a result of an increase in first tranche 
sales from shared ownership properties and also due to the expansion of services provided 
via our cost sharing vehicle (lsos Complete Support). A strong performance on property 
sales, as we continue to sell our less sustainable properties in line with our asset 
management strategy, together with the continued benefit from a low interest rate 
environment gives an operating margin of 27%. Our surplus will be re-invested in the 
development of new homes and improvement to existing homes. 

Statement of Financial Position 

The full statement of financial position is provided on page 38 and supporting details can be 
found in the notes to the financial statements on pages 43 to 90. 

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2016 

£'000s £'000s 
Fixed assets 537,358 517,508 
Net Current Assets 40,391 17,565 
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 577,749 535,073 
Creditors falling due after more than one year 201,105 173,856 
Deferred Grants 221,687 222,903 
Provision for Liabilities and Charges 9,654 4,836 
Reserves 145,303 133,478 

577,749 535,073 

Debt per home (£'000s) 11.4 10.2 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Financial Performance in the Period (continued} 

Statement of Financial Position (continued} 

The increase in fixed assets reflects our continued investment in our homes and the 
development of new homes. These have been financed primarily by debt funding and from 
our reserves. During the year Isas put in place new funding which has increased our overall 
cash balance shown in net current assets. This is forecast to be invested in new homes over 
the next 18 months. As a result of this our debt per home has increased, however this 
remains comparatively low compared to other associations and demonstrates that we have 
the capacity to undertake more borrowing to fulfil our strategic ambitions. 

Operating and Strategic Performance 

The Karbon Homes Interim Strategic Plan sets out the direction and strategy for the period 
2017 to 2018 whilst we develop a 5 year Strategic Plan around how we will turn our vision 
into reality. The plan will be underpinned by a robust evidence base that will be developed in 
consultation with our customers, staff and partners. 

The Interim Strategic plan is framed around five strategic aims that need to be in place to 
create the right conditions for our vision to be delivered successfully. 

Aim 1: To provide as many good quality homes as we can 

Building new homes is important to us and we will progressively increase the supply of new 
homes from around 5,000 to 11,000 over the life of our business plan and we will seek to 
stretch this target as capacity is increased. We will provide a range of housing products and 
tenures including homes that are truly affordable, to create more balanced housing markets. 

We will aim to be as efficient as possible in the use of increasingly scarce development 
funding, including through innovation in construction methods; recycling increased income 
from property sales, including Right-to-Buy; redeveloping under-performing assets and by 
operating through subsidiary companies. 

10 



ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Operating and Strategic Performance (continued) 

We will continue to explore joint ventures and other forms of partnership with private house 
builders and seek suitable opportunities to acquire stock from other housing providers who 
want to review their stock profile. 

We will optimise our investment standards to increase customer satisfaction, strengthen 
demand, reduce reactive repairs and maximise our procurement advantage from a stronger 
planned approach across our investment activities. 

We will strengthen our asset base to improve our competitiveness and customer offer by 
addressing low demand, out-dated homes through a range of investment and intervention 
solutions; improving our neighbourhood environments to strengthen their kerb appeal and 
investing in homes that are 'harder to heat' to reduce fuel poverty, improve affordability and 
comfort levels of customers in these homes. 

Aim 2: To deliver excellent, modern services to all our customers 

Through our commitment to eliminate discrimination, advance equality and diversity and 
foster good relations between different people we will seek to make a real difference to our 
communities. We will be locally responsive and offer a diverse range of services that are 
efficient, effective and streamlined to meet the needs of our customers. 

We will be active in a wider range of housing markets and this will enable us to meet the 
broader range of housing need for current and prospective tenants. We will consider the 
changing demographics and shifting customer base and we will understand our customer 
requirements based on effective and powerful insight into our customers' needs, preferences 
and behaviours, including improved customer profiling. 

We will provide specialist housing and support services for older people, those living with 
long-term conditions, mental health problems, people with physical or learning disabilities 
and people fleeing domestic violence and other issues. 

We will follow a practice of 'right first time' and seek to improve continuously through 
innovation, process improvement using lean techniques and by learning from the best 
organisations within and beyond our sector. We will have a particular focus on improving 
those services that address our customers' priorities with the objective of making it easier 
and more cost effective for them to access. 

We want our customers to be able to access our services 24 hours a day, 365 days a year, 
at a time and place and using a delivery and contact method of their choosing and to a 
timescale they are happy with. We will enable and encourage our customers to access our 
services digitally, including via self-service mobile phone apps and other devices, whilst 
retaining facilities for customers to transact with us in more traditional ways. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Operating and Strategic Performance (continued) 

Aim 3: To build successful and sustainable communities 

A core principle of our approach to allocating and letting our homes, and working with our 
local authority partners, will be to contribute to the development of balanced and sustainable 
communities. 

We will deliver schemes to improve the environmental fabric of our neighbourhoods, 
ensuring that priorities for this, alongside our property investment decisions, are driven by 
customers through improved consultation and feedback mechanisms. 

We will develop a community investment strategy which gives priority to those areas of 
activity which strengthen the organisation in the future. This will include facilitating and sign 
posting to build more resilient communities. 

Our approach will be selective and driven by business need, learning from the evaluation of 
our investment to-date. We will commission strategic partners such as charitable 
foundations and encourage our staff to volunteer. 

We will continue our focus to conserve natural resources. We accept responsibility to 
minimise our impact on the environment by making a strong commitment to environmental 
sustainability and will reflect this in the management and development of our housing stock 
and other assets, particularly where this delivers a direct financial benefit to our customers. 
We will build on our work to reduce fuel poverty for our customers, minimise our impact on 
the environment and adapt to climate change where required. We will continue to assess 
our environmental impact and actively work to reduce these. 

Aim 4: To grow the business and its reputation 

We believe that scale will enable us to drive better and more productive relationships with 
key stakeholders. The importance of this is likely to increase as stakeholders become larger 
and cover more area. 

Our size and scale will also enable us to develop key strategic relationships with other key 
stakeholders where our capacity and preferred partner status will be valued. We will be 
better placed to bid for and access start-up funds, grants and other initiatives that may be 
offered. 

We are predominantly focused on the North East of England, aligned to the strategic and 
community imperatives of the locations which we operate in. We will link into the developing 
regional agenda in terms of the delivery of housing and complementary service offers to 
support economic and social development. 

We have a number of ongoing partnership opportunities and we will continue to seek 
partnerships with other like-minded organisations which share our vision and commitment. 
We will develop key strategic relationships with other stakeholders, especially developers 
and local authorities and also including partners in health and education. 
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1505 HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Operating and Strategic Performance (continued) 

We will continue to support the growth of social enterprises and build on those we have 
which support people into employment and provides a number of services for Karbon Homes 
such as maintenance and gardening services, supply of low cost furniture and white goods to 
residents in the North East. 

Aim 5: To maximise capacity to deliver our ambitions 

We will focus on driving real efficiencies as measured by improvements to operating surplus, 
and reductions to total unit costs. We have identified efficiencies rising to a recurring £3 
million per annum (£1 O million over the first 5 years) generated from amalgamating. This is 
a minimum ambition and will be delivered over the next 5 years. Thereafter, the next 
planning period between years 6 to 1 O will deliver a further £17.5 million. 

Our increased scale as an organisation will allow us to deliver directly, some services which 
are currently outsourced, where this represents the best value-for-money. 

We will be seeking further reductions in our costs over the period of this Strategic Plan and 
beyond, taking a balanced and measured approach, primarily through the ongoing 
transformational programme called 'Futures'. 
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15OS HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Value for Money 

We recognise that if we want to deliver our strategic aims: to provide as many good quality 
homes as we can; to deliver excellent, modern services to all our customers; to build 
successful and sustainable communities; to grow the business and its reputation and to 
maximise capacity to deliver our ambitions, we have to find the additional financial capacity 
through a combination of managed cost savings and income generation. 

Reductions in rental income, less housing grant available, increases in operating cost, 
funders wanting higher margins on their loan finance all mean we have to be attuned to 
providing Value for Money (VFM) services. We need to provide more for less and use any 
spare capacity that we have available in our business plan. 

By ensuring that everything we do is as effective and efficient as possible any capacity within 
our resources can be reinvested into our communities, either in terms of new homes or 
improved services. Continued growth, sensible asset management, the use of 
benchmarking, sustainable procurement, a rounded review of current performance and 
stretching targets for the future remain key, but we also plan to release the untapped 
capacity within our business plan to provide added value. 

ln achieving VFM we understand the balance between cost, efficiency and effectiveness. We 
have therefore reviewed our key performance measures and how they compare with others 
by grouping them into these themes, along with looking at our corporate and financial health. 
Targets for these key performance measures are agreed with the Board before the start of 
each financial year to aid continuous improvement. 

As part of the Group's compliance with the Regulatory Framework, we are required to 
publish a Value for Money self-assessment. Our self-assessment for 2017 can be viewed on 
our website www.isoshousing.co.uk. 

Business Growth and Value for Money 

One of the principal ways we seek to improve efficiency is through scale and business 
growth. The Group has grown steadily since its formation in 2005 and following Cestria 
Community Housing Association joining the Group, we have developed a vision as part of 
our "stronger together" programme (see below) on how we can best combine specific 
strengths, expertise and services to achieve more cost effective and improved service 
outcomes in front line services and back office functions. 

The 'Stronger Together' programme supported the view to establish a 'one team, one 
system' approach. To start creating 'one team', we moved to a single senior management 
structure enabling us to reduce our overall management cost. We also took opportunities to 
review staffing when vacancies arose, where possible moving to a Group solution. ln respect 
of 'one system', incorporating lean systems methodologies, we have now aligned the 
finance, HR and payroll and housing management core systems. The Stronger Together 
programme now forecasts £1 O million of efficiency savings over the 5 year period of the 
business case for the partnership. Investment costs were around £1 million, creating net 
efficiency savings of £9 million. This is £5.6 million more than originally forecast in the 
business case. 
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1505 HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Value for Money (continued) 

Business Growth and Value for Money (continued) 

Following consultation with our residents', staff and partners lsos Housing amalgamated with 
Cestria Community Housing and Derwentside Homes to create a new housing association 
on 3 April 2017 called Karbon Homes. By combining the collective strengths of these 
organisations into one new company, we have created a financially strong, more flexible and 
resilient organisation, that is: 

• better placed and efficiently structured to meet future challenges; 
• able to maximise opportunities for new developments and service improvements; 
• has the capacity to maintain investment in existing properties and the long term 

viability of the business; 
• Sufficiently versatile and robust to respond to changes to meet the needs of tenants 

and customers. 

As Karbon Homes we will progressively increase the supply of new homes from around 
5,000 to 11,000 over the life of our business plan and we will seek to stretch this target as 
capacity is increased. 

This has also been the second year of operation of lsos Complete Support, a cost sharing 
vehicle, working in partnership with other organisations to share costs and increase 
efficiencies in the sharing of our overhead costs. We currently work with Two Castles 
Housing to deliver gas servicing and repairs and in October 2016 Byker Community Trust 
joined the cost sharing group receiving responsive and voids repairs in addition to a number 
of back office services. We look forward to expanding this arrangement to more partners 
during 2017/18. 
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1505 HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Value for Money (continued) 

Involving Customers in Value for Money 

A full review of resident involvement activity has been undertaken during 2016/17 to ensure 
that methods across the organisation for involving residents in decision making remain 
effective. The new customer engagement model ensures that opportunities are available at 
both regional and local levels, include face to face and digital engagement methods to obtain 
wider demographic representation and offer increased opportunity for continuous scrutiny to 
increase openness, transparency and accountability. A group tenants' panel responsible for 
overseeing all tenant involvement activity has been established and a newly constituted 
group tenants' scrutiny panel has been recruited. Extensive resident consultation and 
involvement activities were carried out in developing the new model to ensure that the new 
arrangements fully facilitate tenants to assist in shaping local delivery of services in 
accordance with local priorities. 

Property Asset Management 

One of our corporate aims is 'to provide as many good quality homes as we can' and with 
Karbon Homes owning over 24,000 homes to invest in each year, delivering an annual 
programme of asset interventions for obsolete stock, securing asset disposal income, 
delivering new homes as well as managing a portfolio of non-housing assets, is fundamental 
to the financial strength of the business. 

We spend around 40% of the rent we receive each year on repairing and maintaining our 
homes to a good standard so we can continue to rent them for the long term. 

We have made significant improvements in the quality of our asset data over the last few 
years. This has positioned us to develop a greater understanding of our asset performance, 
the potential investment returns we can expect to make, and the liabilities we will face over 
the next 30 years. 

We use a combination of financial and non-financial factors to help us assess the overall 
financial viability of our property base, which combined with our customer feedback, has 
emphasised the need to address a number of the asset investment issues including: 

• The remodelling or redevelopment of pockets of stock where we are experiencing 
falling demand, principally associated with older persons sheltered units, one 
bedroom bungalows, and very small one bedroom flats and bedsits, 

• Improving our investment standards internally and externally; 

• Helping customers reduce their energy bills; 

• Delivering a major external works and environmental improvement programme to 
improve the 'kerb appeal' of our estates. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Value for Money (continued) 

Property Asset Management (continued) 

This is where our attention will be focussed over the next 5 years as we endeavour to get the 
balance right between competing investment priorities. This will include remodelling, selling 
or replacing those properties in our stock which are out of date, increasingly not fit for 
purpose and which no longer meet the expectations of our customers. To 2022 we have 
planned to spend £208 million on these priorities making sure that every £ is spent to best 
effect. 

The Development of New Homes 

During 2016-17, we completed 247 new homes: 208 for affordable rent and 39 for shared 
ownership at a cost of £29.1 million with a further 44 units completing in the first quarter of 
2017 /18. 833 additional affordable rented homes are in our development pipeline with 97 
due to complete by March 2018. 

Isas was successful in securing £8.5 million to deliver 290 new homes under the HCA's 
'Shared Ownership and Affordable Homes programme 2016-2021 '. 

Year on year we achieve efficiencies through effective procurement and we are currently 
delivering a review of consultant and contractor services to improve value for money across 
our development activities. 

To help reduce project costs, Karbon Homes will continue to utilise its subsidiary 
development company to enable recovery of VAT payable on professional fees associated 
with the development of new homes activities. 

Procurement 

Our procurement ensures all of the works, goods and services we buy deliver the best VFM 
for our Customers. During 2016/17 the team tendered and awarded a range of contracts on 
a 'best value' basis ensuring that suppliers and contractors were pre-qualified to the Group 
standards and that bids were evaluated on both cost and quality. 

The total annual value of new contracts delivered by the Procurement Team during 2016/17 
was in excess of £2.6 million including VAT. 

Benchmarking 

The Group's operating costs and key financial indicators are benchmarked annually using 
data from the Homes and Communities Global Accounts of Housing Associations. 

These are supplemented further through our operational Key Performance Indicators, which 
we monitor against our peer group using the sector benchmarking club HouseMark. One of 
our aims is to be a high performing organisation and we have set ourselves the very 
demanding objective of being in the upper quartile, and even upper decile, for a number of 
indicators which we consider are most important to ourselves as a Group but more 
importantly, to our key stakeholders. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Value for Money (continued) 

Benchmarking (continued) 

Every two years we undertake a customer survey or "STAR return" that provides an 
approach to tenant and resident satisfaction measurement for the social housing sector. lt 
provides housing associations with the essential means of benchmarking satisfaction results 
with each other. Our last survey took place during 2015 and therefore the next survey is due 
during 2017 which will effectively form our 'baseline' position as we move into the new 
organisation of Karbon Homes. Our results of the last two surveys are shown in the 
effectiveness table on page 21. 

During 2017 /18, along with other housing providers, we will be taking part in a pilot to 
develop a Sector Scorecard which will enable more consistency in the demonstration of VFM 
across the sector. Data for the year ending 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 will be 
collected and detailed plans for the full roll out from April 2018 will be finalised during the 
coming year. 

Overall Performance 

Our performance in terms of cost, efficiency and effectiveness alongside our financial and 
corporate health is shown in the tables below. Overall, the Group compares strongly when 
measured against other associations but we acknowledge there is always room for 
improvement. The analysis shows the Group's performance with our peer group audited 
financial statements denoted by 1, sector benchmarking club information denoted by 2 or 
STAR survey information denoted by 3 in the tables that follow. 

Overall, there are a number of areas where we have achieved our aims and are already 
performing at the very highest level. We have made significant reductions in terms of our 
cost indicators and these compare favourably when compared to our peers. The latest 
STAR results are from 2015 as we are planning to complete a customer satisfaction survey 
during 2017. There are a number of indicators which demonstrate that we are not 
performing as well as our peers. Improving these indicators will be our focus as we work on 
aligning systems and processes across the whole of Karbon Homes over the coming 
months. 

1 Comparison of the Group's 2017 results with the 2016 statutory accounts of a group of 52 Associations including regional 
peers, large and national associations and other associations of similar composition to lsos, both urban and rural. 

2 HouseMark is a recognised benchmarking information provider within the Housing Association sector. We benchmark 
ourselves against the results of 63 peer associations. The Group result for 2017 is a composite figure taken from the individual 
lsos and Cestria performance. Peer group average and Quartile Performance are taken from the latest lsos 2016 report. 

3 STAR (Survey of Tenants and Residents) are independent surveys and enable local, regional and national benchmarking in 
order to assess provider performance and tenant satisfaction. 
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Value for Money (continued) 

Cost 

Peer 
Group Group Group Quartile 

Performance Indicator 2017 2016 Average Performance 

Management cost per home1 £606 £674 £1,011 1 

Headline Social Housing cost per home1 £3,202 £3,289 £3,801 2 

Void and Bad Debt cost per home1 £70 £80 £112 1 
Responsive Repairs cost per home1 £909 £943 £1,020 2 
Planned maintenance cost per home1 £933 £961 £952 2 

We have continued to focus on cost control when setting our budgets, introducing new 
technologies, procuring goods and services more effectively and reviewing our internal 
processes through our lean reviews. This is reflected in our cost performance which 
compares favourably with our peers. 

Efficiency 
Peer 

Group Group Group Quartile 
Performance Indicator 2017 2016 Median Performance 

Current tenant rent arrears as a % 3.4% 3.3% 3.4% 2 of rent due2 

Former tenant rent arrears as a % of rent 0.8% 0.7% 1.5% 1 due2 

Average time in days to re-let social 
housing property2 32.3 30.6 28.5 3 

Average time in days to complete a 
responsive repair2 9.6 8.9 9.0 2 

Performance on rent arrears has broadly been maintained and compares favourably with our 
peers, despite the roll out of universal credit and further welfare reforms. 

Following a service review of our lettings process around two years ago we are disappointed 
that we have seen an increase of 1. 7 days in the average time to re-let social housing 
properties. Average relet times for general needs housing decreased to 25 days, an 
improvement of 3 days on the previous year. Performance was less favourable in relation to 
supported housing relet times, largely due to the allocation of a number of longer term voids. 
As this indicator remains higher than our peers and the target we set ourselves, we are 
continuing to focus on further improvements such as pilot schemes to help us understand the 
impact of up-front investment in interior décor and gardens on average re-let times of our 
properties. 

1 Comparison of the Group's 2017 results with the 2016 statutory accounts of a group of 52 Associations including regional 
peers, large and national associations and other associations of similar composition to lsos, both urban and rural. 

2 HouseMark is a recognised benchmarking information provider within the Housing Association sector. We benchmark 
ourselves against the results of 63 peer associations. The Group result for 2017 is a composite figure taken from the individual 
lsos and Cestria performance. Peer group average and Quartile Performance are taken from the latest lsos 2016 report. 
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Value for Money (continued) 

Efficiency (continued) 

We have seen a marginal increase in the average time taken to complete a responsive repair 
from last year. We rolled out mobile technology for our repairs service over a year ago and 
introduced an appointments system which provided an improvement in performance 
between 2015 and 2016. There are still elements of the new system which are not working 
as smoothly as we would like therefore we have recently established a dedicated group to 
focus on making improvements which we are confident will result in further increases in 
performance. 

Corporate Health 
Peer 

Group Group Group Quartile 
Performance Indicator 2017 2016 Average Performance 

Staff Turnover (voluntary)2 8.3% 7.0% 11.3% 1 
Average working days lost due to 7.9 6.6 8.5 2 sickness2 

Average Time to answer telephone call 14 10 29 1 (seconds)2 

Percentage of stage 1 complaints upheld2 46 43 56 1 

The Board recognise that the success of our business depends on the quality of our 
managers and staff. ln an organisation experiencing significant change staff turnover is 
likely to be higher as people face an uncertain future; however a high level of staff turnover 
can lead to increased recruitment costs, lower productivity, lower morale and reduced 
internal controls assurance during the changeover period. ln order to support staff during the 
period of transformation we are providing change management sessions, mentoring and 
coaching and life coaching sessions. 

Sickness continues to compare favourably to the peer group average, although the number 
of days lost has increased. 

2 HouseMark is a recognised benchmarking information provider within the Housing Association sector. We benchmark 
ourselves against the results of 63 peer associations. The Group result for 2017 is a composite figure taken from the individual 
Isas and Cestria performance. Peer group average and Quartile Performance are taken from the latest Isas 2016 report. 
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Value for Money (continued) 

Effectiveness 

Peer 
Group Group Group Quartile 

Performance Indicator 2015 2013 Average Performance 

Satisfaction with: 
Overall Service provided by lsos3 91% 82% 86% 1 

Quality of your home3 87% 83% 85% 1 
Neighbourhood as a place to live3 89% 89% 85% 1 

Rent Provides VFM3 84% 82% 82% 2 
Service Charge Provides VFM3 75% 70% 70% 2 

Repairs and Maintenance3 86% 80% 81% 2 
Listens to your views and acts upon them3 68% 67% 70% 3 

The lsos Group completed its last customer satisfaction survey (STAR) in 2015. As this is 
carried out every two years we will complete this during 2017 as Karbon Homes. All of the 7 
core satisfaction questions (which are standardised and used to benchmark our performance 
with others) show increased customer satisfaction from the previous surveys undertaken in 
2013. 

3 STAR (Survey of Tenants and Residents) are independent surveys and enable local, regional and national benchmarking in 
order to assess provider performance and tenant satisfaction. 
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Value for Money (continued) 

Financial Health 

Peer 
Group Group Group Quartile 

Performance Indicator 2017 2016 Average Performance 

Operating Margin1 27% 28% 28% 2 
Net Margin1 19% 20% 25% 2 

Weighted cost of capital 1 4.2% 4.9% 5.0% 2 
Debt per home1 £11,437 £1 o, 191 £22,439 1 

Gearing1 51% 46% 118% 1 
Interest Cover1 286% 279% 208% 1 

Return on Capital Employed1 4.14% 4.39% 5.77% 4 

We have a strong balance sheet and are using the spare capacity to good effect by 
delivering more housing. The marginal reduction in operating and net margin are primarily 
due to a provision for impairment based on plans to demolish and redevelop a number of 
less desirable properties which are not meeting our customers' expectations. The Group's 
debt per home and gearing (the ratio of debt finance to other sources of finance such as 
grant and reserves) have increased as a result of a new Affordable Housing Finance loan 
agreed during the year, however these ratios continue to compare favourably to the peer 
group average. Our interest cover ratio shows that we have the capacity to service 
additional debt. Future interest rate management will further reduce our weighted cost of 
capital, the effective interest rate we are paying on our debt finance. Where possible we will 
take advantage of the low variable rates but be ready to respond to any Bank of England 
increase in rates when they come. 

1 Comparison of the Group's 2017 results with the 2016 statutory accounts of a group of 52 Associations including regional 
peers, large and national associations and other associations of similar composition to !sos, both urban and rural. 
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Risk Management 

Risks that may prevent Karbon Homes from achieving its objectives are considered and 
reviewed within a risk register by the Group Executive Team and the Board. The risks are 
recorded and assessed in terms of their impact and probability. Major risks, presenting the 
greatest threat to the organisation, are reported to the Board in all Board papers including 
actions to be taken to manage the risks and outcomes. The major risks to the business and 
successful achievement of strategic objectives going forward are considered below. 

• Future changes due to the Welfare Reform Act may result in increases in arrears, bad 
debts, longer void periods and breach of loan covenants. This is in addition to the impact 
of under occupation and increased non dependant deductions; 

• Due to the scale of our development programme there is a risk of failure to deliver our 
committed programme and to realise future growth aspirations; 

• Existing pension schemes may become unaffordable due to benefits being paid out not 
being covered by new employees paying into the scheme. This could result in the 
shortfall in the scheme being required to be paid by Karbon Homes; 

• Failure to secure and manage data in accordance with relevant regulations, particularly 
in light of the new General Data Protection Regulation which comes into force in 2018 
resulting in fines from the Information Commissioner's Office and reputational damage; 

• Failure to comply with loan agreements leads to a breach resulting in the organisation 
being vulnerable to the threat of repricing and being put into special measures; 

• Non-compliance with health and safety legislation could lead to a breach in HSE action. 
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) 

Capital Structure, Treasury Policy and Activity 

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had £231 million of committed debt funding of which £187 
million is drawn. The Group borrowed a further £34.4 million during the year, for the principal 
purpose of developing general family housing accommodation. £44 million remained 
undrawn and available to fund the Group's asset management and on-going new build 
development programmes. 

Debt is secured by specific charges on housing land and buildings. 

The Group borrows, principally from banks and building societies, at both fixed and floating 
rates of interest. The Group Treasury Management Policy includes a target of maintaining a 
portfolio of borrowing split 70% fixed interest and 30% variable interest. The Board 
acknowledge that it is difficult to adhere to this ratio at all times. The proportion of fixed rate 
borrowings at 31 March 2017 was 76% (2016: 66%). 

The Group's lending agreements require compliance with a number of financial and non 
financial covenants. The Group's position is monitored on an on-going basis and reported to 
the Board each quarter. The Group monitors cash flow forecasts closely to ensure that 
sufficient funds are available to meet liabilities when they fall due, whilst not incurring 
unnecessary finance costs, by only drawing on loan facilities when required. Recent reports 
confirmed that the Group was in compliance with its loan covenants at the balance sheet 
date and the Board expects to remain compliant in the foreseeable future. 

Our strong financial performance ensures we have ample headroom on interest cover 
requirements. The gearing ratio, which is a measure of long term loans as a % of social 
housing grants plus reserves, has increased to 51 %, as we put in place new funding during 
the year in line with our business plan. 

The Group has cash balances of £10.9 million at 31 March 2017 (2016: £23.49 million) and 
cash investments of £40.69 million (2016: £1.11 million). The current assets to current 
liabilities ratio stands at 2.96 (2016: 2.01 ). 

Statement of Compliance 

ln preparing this Operating and Financial Review, the Board has followed the principles set 
out in Part 3 of the Statement of Recommended Practice 2014. 

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial statements of 
Isas Housing Limited (the Association) and Isas Group for the year ended 31 March 2017. 
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REPORT OF THE BOARD 

Principal Activity 

Details of the Group's principal activities, its performance during the year and factors likely to 
affect its future developments are contained within the Operating and financial Review, which 
precedes this report. 

The Board of lsos Housing Limited 

The present board members and executive directors in place during the financial year are set 
out on page 3. They served throughout the year unless where indicated. 

During the year payments made to board members were £124k (2016: £124k), which were 
0.15% (2016: 0.15%) of the annual turnover. Payment of Group Chair and Group board 
members is calculated by taking into account the size of the Group and industry norms. The 
Board carries out an annual appraisal of its performance and an annual appraisal of 
individual board members. The Chair is appraised by a panel of board members every year. 

Executive Directors 

Whilst the Board is responsible for the Group's overall policy and strategy, management is 
delegated to the Group Chief Executive. The executive directors are the senior management 
team and act as executives within the authority delegated by the Board. They meet formally 
under the chairmanship of the Group Chief Executive in order to consider all major 
management issues. 

This meeting is a key decision making forum for the management of the Group, reviewing all 
proposed policy changes and performance. The executive directors hold no interest in the 
share capital of any member of The Isas Group. The executive directors are employed on 
service contracts with the same terms as other staff, except for their notice periods which are 
three months. The executive directors are members of the Social Housing Pension Scheme 
or Durham County Council Local Government Pension Scheme, both defined benefit 
pension schemes. They participate in the scheme on the same terms as all other eligible 
staff and the Group contributes to the scheme on behalf of its employees. The executive 
directors are entitled to other benefits such as the provision of a car or cash allowance and 
health care insurance. Details of their remuneration are included in note 1 O to the audited 
financial statements. 
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REPORT OF THE BOARD (CONTINUED) 

Corporate Governance 

The Board is committed to integrity and accountability in the stewardship of the Group's 
affairs. The Group complies with the principal recommendations of the NHF 'Excellence in 
Governance' code for members (January 2015). We chose this code because it is tailored to 
the housing sector and it is a widely recognised example of best practice. 

The Group regularly reviews its governance arrangements including its committee structures. 
lt also undertakes an annual assessment of governance, including roles, responsibilities and 
accountabilities of the Board, Chair and Group Chief Executive and is satisfied that its 
arrangements are clear and effective. The Group Audit and Risk Committee has agreed a 
protocol with the external auditors, which sets out policies for determining what non-audit 
work can be undertaken by the external auditors and procedures for periodic review and 
selection of external auditors. The level of fees paid for this work is set out in note 5 to the 
financial statements. 

The revised HCA Governance and Viability standard was published in January 2015. 
Assurance was provided to the Board in July 2017 that the Group continues to meet the 
regulatory standards. 

Corporate Role of the Board 

Board responsibilities transferred to Karbon Homes Board on 3 April 2017. For the financial 
year 2016/17 the Board comprised up to twelve non-executive board members. Terms of 
reference were issued to the Board. Board members acted in the interest of the Isas Group 
and not on behalf of any other interest group. 

The principal obligations of the Board to the Group were to: 

• be committed to the mission, values and objectives of the Isas Group; 

• develop strategy and implement the Isas Group's core policies; 

• uphold the Group's constitution and NHF Code of Governance; and 

• represent the Isas Group and enhance its profile externally. 

The Board was drawn from a wide background and its members were selected to ensure 
that they bring relevant experience, skills and understanding to the discussions and decision 
making process of the Board. 

Each subsidiary had a board of directors chosen for their specific area of expertise together 
with appointees to provide strong channels of communication with the Group Board. 

The Association Board met formally 8 times during the year. Fiduciary meetings were held 
on a quarterly basis to fit with financial and performance reporting cycles. These were 
complimented by two strategic meetings and two creative meetings that considered scenario 
planning and ideas generation. 
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Corporate Role of the Board (continued) 

The executive directors and the Governance Manager also attended board meetings. 

Reporting to the Board were the Group Remuneration and Nominations Committee, the 
Group Audit and Risk Committee and the Group Development and Property Committee. The 
summary terms of reference for the committees follow and the membership as at 3 April 
2017, drawn from the board membership of the Group's Associations, is shown in the table 
below: 

Group Committee Structure 

Group Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee 

David Butler (Chair) 

Jackie Axel by 

Steve Brnmwel I 

Hilary Florek 

Stephen Moorhouse 

John Williams 

Group Audit and Risk 
Cornrnlttee 

Stephen Moorhouse (Cha.ir) 

Allan Bertram 

Barry Scarr 

John Williams 

Group Development and 
Property Committee 

Steve Bramwell (Chair) 

Jackie A.xelby 

Allan Bertram 

Anne Mulroy 

Clive Rook 

Glyn Ha.li 

Group Remuneration and Nominations Committee 

This was a non-executive committee. lt had the responsibility for overseeing the Group's 
remuneration policies and recommended the annual staff pay award to the Group Board. lt 
also ensured the Group has a transparent approach to the appointment of board members 
and advised the Board on the remuneration and terms and conditions of the Group Chief 
Executive and other executive directors after taking external advice. The executive directors 
were not present at the meeting when their salaries are determined. The Committee met at 
least once a year. 

Group Audit and Risk Committee 
The Group Audit and Risk Committee was a non-executive committee, addressing internal 
and external audit issues and advising the Board on risk management policies and 
processes. lt also considered the financial statements and recommended their approval by 
Board. lt met six times during the year which also included two additional meetings to 
provide scrutiny regarding the due diligence on Derwentside Homes. 

Group Development and Property Committee 
The Group Development and Property Committee was a non-executive committee that 
advised the Group Board on the Group's Asset Management and Development strategies, 
ensuring that the Group's approach to capital investment was co-ordinated, challenging and 
dynamic. lt also considered and approved new developments in accordance with the 
framework set out by the Group Board. The committee normally met 6 times a year. 
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Internal Controls Assurance 

The Board is the ultimate governing body and is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
the whole system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness across the Group. 

The system of internal control is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure 
to achieve business objectives, and to provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance 
against material misstatement or loss. 

The process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group 
is ongoing and has been in place throughout the period commencing 1 April 2016 up to the 
date of approval of the report and financial statements. 

Key elements of the control framework include: 

• Board approved terms of reference and delegated authorities for Group Audit and 
Risk Committee; 

• clearly defined management responsibilities for the identification, evaluation and 
control of significant risks; 

• robust strategic and business planning processes, with detailed financial budgets and 
forecasts; 

• formal recruitment, retention, training and development policies for all staff; 

• established authorisation and appraisal procedures for all significant new initiatives 
and commitments; 

• a sophisticated approach to treasury management; 

• regular reporting to the Board or committees on key business objectives, targets and 
outcomes; 

• Board approved whistle blowing and anti-theft, corruption, bribery and fraud policies; 

• a standing report to the Group Audit and Risk Committee on the progress of action 
plans developed to remedy any weaknesses and to implement recommendations 
from both the internal and external auditors; and 

• the fraud register reviewed at each Group Audit and Risk Committee meeting and all 
new entries reported separately to the Board. 

The Board and its committees obtain external specialist advice from time to time as 
necessary. 

A fraud register is maintained and is reviewed at each Group Audit and Risk Committee 
meeting. There were two incidences of fraud during the year which required reporting to the 
Group Risk and Audit Committee. 
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Internal Controls Assurance (continued) 

The Board cannot delegate ultimate responsibility for the system of internal control, but it 
can, and has, delegated authority to the Group Audit and Risk Committee to regularly review 
the effectiveness of the system of internal control. The Board receives quarterly reports from 
the Group Audit and Risk Committee together with minutes of Group Audit and Risk 
Committee meetings. 

The Group Audit and Risk Committee has received the Group Chief Executive's annual 
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control for the Association and its 
subsidiaries, and the annual report of the internal auditors, and has reported its findings to 
the Board. 

Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board for the Report and Financial 
Statements 

The Board is responsible for preparing the report and financial statements in accordance 
with applicable law and regulations. 

The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 requires the Board to prepare 
financial statements for each financial year. Under the legislation, the directors have elected 
to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable laws). Under 
The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 the directors must not approve 
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs and surplus or deficit of the Group for that period. 

ln preparing those financial statements the Board is required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently; 

• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and the Statement of 
Recommended Practice 2014, have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 

• prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is appropriate to 
presume that the Group will not continue in business. 

The Board is responsible for keeping and maintaining proper accounting records which 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and 
Association and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Co 
operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 
2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. 
lt is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Association and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The Board is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the Association's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom 
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from 
legislation in other jurisdictions. 
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Employees 

The strength of the organisation lies in the quality of all of its employees. ln particular, our 
ability to meet our objectives and commitments to our customers in an efficient and effective 
manner depends on their contribution. 

The Group shares information on its objectives, progress and activities through regular office 
and departmental meetings involving the senior management team and staff. 

We continue to maintain the Investors in People Gold award, along with the top 7% of 
accredited organisations across the UK who believe in realising the potential of their people. 

lsos received its first ServiceMark accreditation with the Institute of Customer Service in 
March 2013. The accreditation is valid for 3 years and having undergone an intensive 
assessment, lsos was awarded further ServiceMark accreditation in April 2016. This 
prestigious accreditation recognises not just our current high standards of customer service, 
but also our commitment to improving our customers' experience. We will be reapplying for 
this accreditation for Karbon Homes, currently planned for 2018. 

All of our Managers and Team Leaders have completed a Manager as Coach Training 
Module to complement the Manager Development Programme completed last year. We have 
also continued with our aspiring manager training programme "Stepping into Management" 
which has seen 4 of 12 staff experiencing career development as a result. 

We continue to invest in our people with a generous reward and benefit package, excellent 
working environment, continued improvement in health and safety provision, new uniforms, 
and effective tools and equipment. 

Our plans for 2017-18 are linked to the long term future of the organisation and include 
organisation alignment and a full terms and conditions and benefits package review. To 
support Managers and staff, regular briefings, face-to-face events, roadshows, change 
workshops, coaching for Line Managers and life coaching has been made available. 

Equality and Diversity 

The Group is a values-led organisation and diversity is at the heart of what the Group is 
about. As an organisation we believe this makes the Group stronger because of the wide 
range of individuals working for us and receiving our services. We translate this commitment 
to diversity into policy in many different ways, for example in our recruitment practices and 
the types of services we develop and offer. 

Health and Safety 

The Board is aware of its responsibilities on all matters relating to health and safety. The 
Group has prepared detailed health and safety policies and provides staff training and 
education on health and safety matters. 
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Resident Involvement 

A full review of resident involvement activity has been undertaken during 2016/17 to ensure 
that methods across the Group for involving residents in decision making remain effective. 
The new customer engagement model ensures that opportunities are available at both 
regional and local levels, include both face to face and digital engagement methods to obtain 
wider demographic representation and offer increased opportunity for continuous scrutiny to 
increase openness, transparency and accountability. A group tenants panel responsible for 
overseeing all tenant involvement activity has been established and a newly constituted 
group tenants scrutiny panel has been recruited. Extensive resident consultation and 
involvement activities were carried out in developing the new model to ensure that the new 
arrangements fully facilitate tenants to assist in shaping local delivery of services in 
accordance with local priorities. 

Review of Business and Future Developments 

The review of business and future developments is discussed in the Group Chair's and the 
Group Chief Executive's statement and the operating and financial review on pages 7 to 24. 

Donations 

The Group made no political donations during the year (2016: £nil). 

Policy on Payment of Creditors 

The Group's policy is to pay purchase invoices within 30 days of receipt, or earlier if agreed 
with the supplier. 

Financial Instruments 

The Group uses various financial instruments, including loans and cash, and other items 
such as rental arrears and trade creditors that arise directly from its operations. The main 
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. 

The existence of these financial instruments exposes the Group to a number of financial 
risks. The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are considered by the 
board to be the interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit rate risk. The Board review and 
agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. 

Interest rate risk 
The Group's finances its operations through a mixture of retained surpluses and bank 
borrowings. The Group's exposure to interest fluctuations on its borrowings is managed by 
the use of both fixed and variable rate facilities. 

Liquidity risk 
The Group seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient liquidity is available to meet 
foreseeable needs and invest cash assets safely and profitably. ln addition to drawn 
borrowings and cash balances of £11 m, the Group has £44m of undrawn committed 
facilities. 

31 



ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

REPORT OF THE BOARD (CONTINUED) 

Credit risk 
The Group's principal credit risk relates to tenant arrears. This risk is managed by providing 
support to eligible tenants with their application for Housing Benefit and to closely monitor 
the arrears of self-funding tenants. The proposed welfare reforms and resulting changes to 
the benefits system has been identified as a key risk to the Group and we are continuously 
engaging with our tenants to ensure that the impact of the reforms are minimised and rental 
flows are maintained. 

Post Balance Sheet Events 

On 3 April 2017 Isas Housing Limited amalgamated with Cestria Community Housing Limited 
and Derwentside Homes Limited to form a new Housing Association called Karbon Homes 
Limited. 

From 3 April the Board of Karbon Homes became responsible for all matters related to the 
amalgamated entities: Isas Housing Limited, Cestria Community Housing Association 
Limited, Derwentside Homes Limited and their subsidiaries. This includes approving the 
statutory accounts. 

When approving the financial statements the Karbon Homes Board is required to make an 
assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. ln doing this the Board is 
required to consider all available information about the future, which is at least but not limited 
to, twelve months from the date when the financial statements are approved and signed. 

Going concern 

After making enquiries, the Karbon Homes Board has a reasonable expectation that the 
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future, being a period of twelve months after the date on which the report and financial 
statements are signed. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in the 
financial statements. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

REPORT OF THE BOARD (CONTINUED) 

Future Developments 

A key influence on the timing of borrowings is the rate at which development activity takes 
place. The Karbon Board has approved plans to spend £67.5 million during the next 
financial year developing new general needs housing and £36.9 million will be spent on 
planned and responsive maintenance. £7.7 million of this investment will be funded through 
new borrowings, £18.7 million through social housing and other grant, and the balance from 
existing cash and operational cash flows. 

The Group has bilateral or ring-fenced loan facilities in place. As at 31 March 2017 Karbon 
Homes had total loan facilities of £335 million, of which £65.5 million remained undrawn, and 
a cash balance of £54.2 million. 

The Group has sufficient funds to meet its requirements for the next 12 months from the date 
of this report. 

External Auditors 

The auditors, Seever and Struthers, are willing to remain in office and a resolution to re 
appoint them as auditors to the Group was approved by the Board on 12 July 2017. During 
the forthcoming year, a procurement exercise will be undertaken to appoint external auditors 
for the Karbon Homes Group. Seever and Struthers have stated that they will resign as 
external auditors if required to do so. 

Approval 

The Report of the Board was approved by the Board on 12 July 2017 and signed on its 
behalf by: 

M Reid 

Company Secretary 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ISOS 
HOUSING LIMITED 

We have audited the financial statements of the lsos Group and Association for the year ended 31 
March 2017 on pages 36 to 90. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

This report is made solely to the Association's members, as a body, in accordance with Section 87 
of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Association's members those matters we are required to 
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Association and the 
Association's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed. 

Respective Responsibilities of the Board and the Auditor 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Board's Responsibilities set out on page 28, the Board 
is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view. Our 
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require 
us to comply with the Financial Reporting Council's (FRC's) Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: 
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group and Association's circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by the Board; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
ln addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Board Report to identify 
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any 
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 

Opinion on Financial Statements 

ln our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Group and Association's affairs as at 31 
March 2017 and of its surplus for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community 
Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies (Group 
Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the 
Accounting Requirements for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. 

ln our opinion the information given in the Operating and Financial Review for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ISOS 
HOUSING LIMITED (CONTINUED) 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; 

• the group and association has not kept proper accounting records; 

• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

Seever and Struthers 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
St George's House 
215 -219 Chester Road 
Manchester 
M15 4JE Date: 12 July 2017 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For the year ended 31 March 2017 
Note 2017 2016 

Restated 
£'000 £'000 

Turnover 3 83,513 80,140 

Cost of Sales 3 (3,652) (1,723) 

Operating expenditure 3 (57,613) (55,680) 

Operating surplus 3 22,248 22,737 

Surplus on sale of property, plant and equipment - 
housing properties 6 1,872 1,667 
(Deficit) /Surplus on sale of property, plant and 
equipment - other fixed assets (12) 25 
Interest receivable and other income 7 84 102 
Interest payable and similar charges 8 (7,774) (8,147) 
Other finance costs (268) (254) 

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 

Surplus for the financial year 

Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect of pension schemes 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

11 

27 

16,150 

(14) 

16,130 

(15) 

16,136 

(4,320) 

16,115 

960 

11,816 17,075 

The consolidated results relate to continuing and acquired activities. 

The notes on pages 43 to 90 form part of these financial statements. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue and approved by the Karbon Homes Board on 
12 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by: 

Sebert Cox 
Chair 

c?n~--- ~ ,-:y 

Mark Reid Com.ry 
36 



ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

- 
ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For the year ended 31 March 2017 
Note 2017 2016 

Restated 
£'000 £'000 

Turnover 3 64,653 61,838 

Cost of sales 3 (5,056) (2,892) 

Operating expenditure 3 (43,245) (42,454) 

Operating surplus 3 16,352 16,492 

Surplus on sale of property, plant and equipment - 
housing properties 6 1,489 1,350 
(Deficit) /Surplus on sale of property, plant and 
equipment - other fixed assets (12) 25 
Gift Aid receivable 14 10 
Interest receivable and other income 7 53 69 
Interest payable and similar charges 8 (7,042) (7,424) 
Other finance costs (198) (174) 

Surplus before taxation 10,652 10,338 

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 11 

Surplus for the financial year 27 10,652 10,338 

Actuarial gain in respect of pension schemes 9 480 170 

Total comprehensive income for the year 11,132 10,508 

The association's results relate wholly to continuing activities 

The notes on pages 43 to 90 form part of these financial statements. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue and approved by the Karbon Homes Board on 
12 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by: 

Sebert Cox 
Chair 

David Butler 

? -- 

Mark Reid Companiliî@ 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

At 31 March 2017 

Note 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 

Fixed Assets 
Tangible fixed assets 
Housing properties at cost less depreciation 12 530,361 510,485 
Other tangible fixed assets 13 6,706 6,703 
Investments 
Homeßuy loans receivable 15 291 320 

537,358 517,508 
Current assets 
Properties for sale 16 1,847 3,789 
Consumable stock 350 356 
Debtors 17 7,180 6,569 
Investments 18 40,689 1,119 
Cash and cash equivalents 10,901 23,492 

60,967 35,325 
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 19 (20,585) (17,760) 

Net current assets 40,382 17,565 

Total assets less current liabilities 577,740 535,073 

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 20 201,105 173,856 
Deferred grants 23 221,687 222,903 
Provision for liabilities and charges 25 114 96 
Pension liability 9,540 4,740 

432,446 401,595 

Total net assets 145,294 133,478 

Capital and reserves 
Non-equity share capital 26 
Revenue reserve 27 145,294 133,478 

Consolidated funds 27 145,294 133,478 

The notes on pages 43 to 90 form part of these financial statements. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue and approved by the Karbon Homes 
Board on 12 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by: 

Sebert Cox 
Chair 

David Butler Mark Reid 
Company 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

At 31 March 2017 

Note 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 

Fixed Assets 
Tangible fixed assets 
Housing properties at cost less depreciation 12 416,162 402,561 
Other tangible fixed assets 13 6,216 5,978 
Investments 
HomeBuy loans receivable 15 291 320 

422,669 408,859 
Current assets 
Properties for sale 16 1,485 2,637 
Consumable stock 166 148 
Debtors 17 5,685 4,923 
Investments 18 40,689 1,119 
Cash and cash equivalents 2,862 17,205 

50,887 26,032 
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 19 (16,263) (14,757) 

Net current assets 34,624 11,275 

Total assets less current liabilities 457,293 420,134 

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 20 185,014 157,856 
Deferred grants 23 186,249 186,778 
Provision for liabilities and charges 25 84 96 
Pension liability 9 1,810 2,400 

373,157 347,130 

Total net assets 84,136 73,004 

Capital and reserves 
Non-equity share capital 26 
Revenue reserve 27 84,136 73,004 

Consolidated funds 27 84,136 73,004 

The notes on pages 43 to 90 form part of these financial statements. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue and approved by the Karbon Homes 
Board on 12 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by: 

Sebert Cox 
Chair 

David Butler MarkReid mJØJ 
Company Sec .t Yi 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES 

Group Association 
Total Total 

Funds Funds 

£'000 £'000 

Balance at 1 April 2016 133,478 73,004 

Surplus from Statement of Comprehensive Income 16,136 10,652 
Actuarial (loss) /gain on pension scheme (4,320) 480 

Balance at 31 March 2017 145,294 84,136 

The notes on pages 43 to 90 form part of these financial statements. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

2017 2016 
Restated 

£'000 £'000 
Net cash generated from operating activities (See Note 1) 36,631 32,599 

Cash flow from investing activities 

Purchase and construction of housing properties (26,938) (15,170) 
Works to existing properties capitalised (9,407) (10,841) 
Purchase of other fixed assets (1,132) (1,048) 
Sale of housing properties 4,510 3,125 
Payment to Northumberland County Council re sales of (186) (370) 
properties 
Sale of other fixed assets 26 218 
Social housing grant received 3,332 3,917 
Interest received 84 102 

(29,711) (20,067) 

Cash flow from financing activities 

Interest paid 
New secured loans 
Repayment of Homebuy Loan 
Repayments of borrowings 
Money market & investment movements 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

(7,915) 
34,400 

29 
(6,455) 

(39,570) 

(8,247) 
15,450 

(101) 
(115) 

(19,511) 6,987 

(12,591) 
23,492 

19,519 
3,973 

10,901 23,492 

Within the cash flow for investing activities the analysis of fixed assets has changed without 
impact on the overall result. 

The notes on pages 43 to 90 form part of these financial statements. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

Note 1 2017 2016 
Restated 

£'000 £'000 
Cash Flow from operating activities 

Surplus for the year 16,136 16,115 

Adjustments for non-cash items: 
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 14,130 13,921 
Release of deferred grant income (4,124) (3,891) 
Impairment 633 33 
Increase/( decrease) in provisions 18 (114) 
Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposals 2,415 1,281 
Pension operating charge 1,597 3,330 
Pension contributions paid (1,630) (1,606) 
Taxation (10) 15 
Decrease/(increase) in stock 6 (7) 
Decrease/(increase) in properties for sale 2,266 211 
(lncrease)/decrease in trade and other debtors (286) 1,338 
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other creditors 2,000 (3,078) 

17,015 11,433 

Adjustments for investing or financing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed asset disposals 
Grants utilised in the year 
Interest payable 
I n te rest received 

Taxation 
Corporation tax paid 

Net cash generated from operating activities 

(4,275) 
51 

7,774 
(84) 

3,466 

14 

(2,973) 
(21) 

8,147 
(102) 
5,051 

36,631 32,599 

The notes on pages 43 to 90 form part of these financial statements. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Legal Status 
The Association is a registered society in England under the Co-operative and 
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and is registered as a housing provider with 
the Homes and Communities Agency. The registered office is Number Five, 
Gosforth Park Avenue, Gosforth Business Park, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE12 SEG. 

2. Accounting Policies 
Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements of the Group and Association are prepared in accordance 
with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008, the Statement of Recommended Practice 2014 and comply 
with the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 
2015. 
The accounts are prepared on the historical cost basis of accounting and are 
presented in sterling £000s for the year ended 31 March 2017. 
The Group's financial statements have been prepared in compliance with FRS102. 
The Group meets the definition of a Public Benefit Entity. 

Going Concern 
The Group's business activities, its current financial position and factors likely to 
affect its future development are set out within the Operating and Financial Review. 
The Group has in place long-term debt facilities which provide adequate resources 
to finance committed reinvestment and development programmes, along with the 
Group's day to day operations. The Group also has a long-term business plan 
which shows that it is able to service these debt facilities whilst continuing to comply 
with its lenders' covenants. 

Government's announcements in July 2015 impacting on the future income of the 
Association have led to a reassessment of the business plan. No significant 
concerns have been noted and we consider it appropriate to prepare the financial 
statements on a going concern basis. As such, the board has a reasonable 
expectation that the Group and Association has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of at least twelve 
months after the date on which the report and financial statement are signed. For 
this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in the financial 
statements. 
On 3 April 2017 the lsos Group amalgamated with Cestria Community Housing 
Limited and Derwentside Homes Limited to form a new company called Karbon 
Homes Limited, all the assets and liabilities of the lsos Group were transferred to 
the new company. 
Basis of Consolidation 
The Group accounts consolidate the accounts of the Association and its 
subsidiaries at 31 March using acquisition accounting. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

2. Accounting Policies {continued) 

Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets 
and liabilities as at the date of the Statement of Financial Position and the amounts 
reported for revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of 
estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates. The 
following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most 
significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

a. Development expenditure:- The Group capitalises development 
expenditure in accordance with the accounting policy described on page 
47. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management's judgement that 
development scheme is confirmed, usually when Board approval has taken 
place. ln determining whether a project is likely to cease, management 
monitors the development and considers if changes have occurred that 
result in impairment. 

b. Categorisation of housing properties:- The Group has undertaken a 
detailed review of the intended use of all housing properties. ln 
determining the intended use, the Group has considered if the asset is 
held for social benefit or to earn commercial rentals. 

c. Impairment:- Reviews for impairment of housing properties are carried out 
when a trigger has occurred and any impairment loss in a cash generating 
unit is recognised by a charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
Impairment is recognised where the carrying value of a cash generating 
unit exceeds the higher of its net realisable value or its value in use. A 
cash generating unit is normally a group of properties at scheme level 
whose cash income can be separately identified. 

Other key sources of estimation and assumptions: 
a. Tangible fixed assets. Other than investment properties, tangible fixed 

assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual 
values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual 
values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of 
factors. ln re-assessing asset lives, factors such as product life cycles and 
maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value 
assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the 
remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. 

b. Amortisation of gap funding. Gap funding is amortised over the useful 
economic life of the components. 

c. Amortisation of social housing and other government grants. Social 
housing and other government grants are amortised over the useful 
economic life of the structure of the housing properties. 
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1505 HOUSING LIMITED 

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 

Turnover and Revenue Recognition 
Turnover comprises rental income receivable in the year, amortised capital grant, 
revenue grants receivable in the year, income from shared ownership first tranche 
sales, sales of properties built for sale, other services included at the invoiced value 
( excluding VAT where recoverable) of goods and services supplied in the year. 

Rental income is recognised from the point when properties under development 
reach practical completion or otherwise become available for letting. Income from 
first tranche sales and sales of properties built for sale is recognised at the point of 
legal completion of the sale. Revenue grants are receivable when the conditions for 
receipt of agreed grant funding have been met. Charges for support services 
funded under Supporting People are recognised as they fall due under the 
contractual arrangements with Administering Authorities. 

Sales of properties developed for outright sale are included in Turnover and Cost of 
Sales. 

Service Charges 
The Group operates both fixed and variable service charges on a scheme by 
scheme basis in full consultation with residents. Where variable service charges 
are used the charges will include an allowance for the surplus or deficit from prior 
years, with the surplus being returned to residents by a reduced charge and a deficit 
being recovered by a higher charge. Until these are returned or recovered they are 
held in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Where periodic expenditure is required a provision may be built up over the years, 
in consultation with the residents. Until these costs are incurred this liability is held 
in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Taxation 
The parent company became an exempt charity on 28 March 2011 and from this 
date any surpluses or deficits arising from its charitable activities will be exempt 
from corporation tax. Any activity relating to non-charitable activity will be subject to 
corporation tax. 

Deferred Taxation 
The payment of taxation is deferred or accelerated because of timing differences 
between the treatment of certain items for accounting and taxation purposes. Except 
as noted below, full provision for deferred taxation is made under the incremental 
liability method on all timing differences that have arisen, but not reversed by the 
balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax is not provided for gains on the sale of non-monetary assets, if the 
taxable gain will probably be rolled over. 
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods 
when the timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and law 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are not discounted. 
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1S05 HOUSING LIMITED 

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 

Value Added Tax 
The Group charges value added tax (VAT) on some of its income and is able to 
recover part of the VAT it incurs on expenditure. The financial statements include 
VAT to the extent that it is suffered by the Group and not recoverable from HM 
Revenue and Customs. The Group has two VAT Shelter Agreements in place; as a 
result, the VAT incurred on the social housing properties stock improvement 
programme is recoverable. The balance of VAT payable or recoverable at the year 
end is included as a current liability or asset. 

Loan Interest Costs 
Interest payable is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year. 
No interest is capitalised. 

Pensions 
The Group participates in three funded multi-employer defined benefit schemes, the 
Social Housing Pension Scheme ('SHPS'), the Northumberland County Council 
Pension Fund ('NCCPF') and the Durham County Council Pension Scheme 
('DCCPF'). 

For the SHPS, it has not been possible to identify the share of underlying assets 
and liabilities belonging to individual participating employers. The income and 
expenditure charge represents the employer contributions payable to the scheme 
for the accounting period. 

For the NCCPF and DCCPF, the operating costs of providing retirement benefits to 
participating employees are recognised in the accounting periods in which the 
benefits are earned. The related finance costs, expected return on assets and any 
other changes in fair value of the assets and liabilities, are recognised in the 
accounting period in which they arise. The operating costs, finance costs and 
expected return on assets are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income along with any other changes in fair value of assets and liabilities. 

The Group also participates in a SHPS defined contribution scheme; contributions 
payable under an agreement with SHPS to fund past deficits are recognised as a 
liability in the Group's financial statements calculated by the repayments known and 
discounted to the net present value at the year ended using a market rate discount 
factor. 

The unwinding of discount is recognised as a finance cost in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income in the period incurred. 

Supporting People 
Charges for support services funded under Supporting People are recognised as 
they fall due under the contractual arrangements with Administering Authorities. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 

Business Combinations 
Acquisitions of other entities in the social housing sector that are in substance a gift 
are treated as non-reciprocal transfers where the substance of the transaction is 
gifting control of one entity to another. These are also known as non-exchange 
transactions. ln this case the fair value of the gifted assets and liabilities are 
recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year 
of the transaction. 

Housing Properties 
Housing properties are principally properties available for rent and are stated at cost 
less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the cost of acquiring land and 
buildings, development costs and expenditure incurred in respect of improvements. 

Works to existing properties which replace a component that has been treated 
separately for depreciation purposes, along with those works that result in an 
increase in net rental income over the lives of the properties, thereby enhancing the 
economic benefits of the assets, are capitalised as improvements. Such capital 
expenditure is subsequently subject to the application of the depreciation policy 
whereby the accumulated cost (less any residual values) of the capital asset is 
reduced over the useful life of the asset. 

All other expenditure incurred in respect of general repairs to the housing stock is 
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which it is 
incurred. 

Shared ownership properties are split proportionally between current and fixed 
assets based on the element relating to expected first tranche sales. The first 
tranche proportion is classed as a current asset and related sales proceeds 
included in turnover and the remaining element is classed as fixed asset and 
included in housing properties at cost, less any provisions needed for depreciation 
or impairment. 
Housing properties under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated. 
These are reclassified as housing properties on practical completion of 
construction. 

Social Housing Grants 
Social Housing Grant (SHG) is receivable from the HCA and is utilised to reduce 
the capital costs of housing properties, including land costs. Where developments 
have been financed wholly or partly by social housing and other grants, the amount 
of the grant received has been included as deferred income and recognised in 
turnover over the estimated useful life of the associated asset structure (not land), 
under the accruals model. SHG received for items of cost written off in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income is included as part of turnover. 
SHG must be recycled by the Group under certain conditions, if a property is sold, 
or if another relevant event takes place. ln these cases SHG is credited to 
Recycled Capital Grant Fund in creditors in the Statement of Financial Position and 
can be used for projects approved by the Homes and Communities Agency. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 

Social Housing Grants (continued) 
However, SHG may have to be repaid if certain conditions are not met. If grant is 
not required to be recycled or repaid, any unamortised grant is recognised as 
turnover. ln certain circumstances, SHG may be repayable, and, in that event, is a 
subordinated unsecured repayable debt. 

Recycling of Capital Grant 
Where Social Housing Grant is recycled, as described above, the SHG is credited 
to a fund which appears as a creditor until used to fund the acquisition of new 
properties. Where recycled grant is known to be repayable it is shown as a creditor 
within one year. 

Donated Land 
Land donated by local authorities and others is added to cost at the market value of 
the land at the time of the donation. 

Disposal Proceeds Fund 
Receipts from the sale of SHG funded properties less the net book value of the 
property and the costs of disposal are credited to the DPF, this creditor is carried 
forward until it is used to fund the acquisition of new social housing. 

Current Asset Investments 
Investments are held at market value. 

Holiday Pay Accrual 
A liability is recognised to the extent of any unused holiday pay entitlement which 
has accrued at the balance sheet date and carried forward to future periods. This is 
measured at the undiscounted salary cost of the future holiday entitlement so 
accrued at the balance sheet date. 

Other Grants 
Grants received from non-government sources are recognised under the 
performance model. If there are no specific performance requirements the grants are 
recognised when received or receivable. Where grant is received with specific 
performance requirements it is recognised as a liability until the conditions are met 
and then it is recognised as turnover. 
Other grants include Gap Funding received from the Homes and Community Agency 
(HCA), formerly the Department of Communities and Local Government and have 
been utilised to reduce the capital costs of works to housing properties. 
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ISOS HOUSING LIMITED 

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 
Depreciation of Housing Properties 
The Group separately identifies the major components which comprise its housing 
properties, and charges depreciation, so as to write-down the cost of each 
component to its estimated residual value, on a straight line basis, over its 
estimated useful economic life. 
Where a housing property comprises two or more major components with 
substantially different useful lives (UELs), each component is accounted for 
separately and depreciated over its UEL. Expenditure relating to subsequent 
replacement or renewal of components is capitalised as incurred. Depreciation 
charges are part of the Group's running costs and are recognised in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income over the useful life of the asset. The Group depreciates 
the major components of its housing properties held for letting at the following 
lifespan and annual rates: 

Years Rates 
Structure 50 -125 0.8% -2.0% 
Roofs 60-65 1.5% -1.6% 
Kitchens 20-25 4.0% -5.0% 
Bathrooms 25 - 30 3.3% -4.0% 
Windows 30 3.3% 
Heating Systems 15-30 1.5% -3.3% 
Rewires 25 - 40 2.5% -4.0% 
Boilers Systems 15 6.7% 

Freehold land is not depreciated. Properties held on leases are amortised over the 
life of the lease or their estimated useful economic lives in the business, if shorter. 

Impairment 
Assets are reviewed for impairment if there is an indication that impairment may 
have occurred. Indicators considered include external sources of information such 
as market value, actual or proposed changes to technological, economic or legal 
environment, obsolescence or damage to the asset, operational changes or internal 
reporting indicates that the asset is performing worse than expected. Where there is 
evidence of impairment, fixed assets are written down to their recoverable amount. 
Impairment is recognised where the carrying value of a cash generating unit 
exceeds the higher of its net realisable value or its value in use. Any such write 
down is charged to operating surplus. 
ln July 2015, as part of the Government's summer budget, the Chancellor 
announced a mandatory cut in Housing Association social and affordable rents of 
1 % for each of the next 4 years commencing April 2016. This is a reversal of the 
previous coalition government's policy which gave the sector a 1 O-year rent formula 
of CPI plus 1 %. We have adjusted our financial plans and operating practices to 
minimise the impact of the rental loss and maintain surpluses. After taking the 
reduction into account when reviewing our housing stock; no further impairment is 
considered necessary as a result of the rent reduction. 
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2. Accounting Policies (continued) 
Positive and Negative Goodwill 
On acquisition, the recognised assets and liabilities of the acquired asset or entity will 
be measured at a fair value that reflects the conditions at the date of the acquisition. 
Positive or negative goodwill that arises will be treated as a gain or loss to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year the transaction occurs. 

Current Asset Investments 
Investments are held at market value. 

Other Tangible Fixed Assets 
Depreciation is provided evenly on the cost of other tangible fixed assets to write 
them down to their estimated residual values over their expected useful lives. No 
depreciation is provided on freehold land. The principal annual rates used for other 
assets are: 

Freehold buildings 

Long leasehold property 

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 

Computers and office equipment 

Motor vehicles 

Plant and equipment 

A range of 2% to 10% 

Over life of lease 

A range of 10% to 20% 

A range of 20% to 33.33% 

25% to 33.33% 

20% 

Leased Assets 
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Properties Held for Sale 
Properties developed for outright sale, shared ownership first tranche sales and 
properties under construction are included in current assets as they are intended to 
be sold, at the lower of cost or estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. 
Cost comprises materials, direct labour and direct development overheads. Net 
realisable value is based on estimated sales price after allowing for all further costs of 
completion and disposal. 

At each reporting date, stock and properties held for sale are assessed for 
impairment. If there is evidence of impairment, the carrying amount is reduced to its 
selling price less costs to complete and sell. The impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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2. Accounting Policies (continued) 
Short-term Debtors and Creditors 
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within 
one year are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in other operating 
expenses. 

Liquid Resources 
Liquid resources are readily disposable current asset investments. They include 
investments held for more than 24 hours, which can only be withdrawn without 
penalty on maturity or by giving notice of more than one working day. These are 
shown as cash within the statement of financial position 
Provisions 
The Group only provides for contractual liabilities. 

Financial Instruments 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise cash and cash equivalents, 
investments, trade debtors, other debtors, accrued income and amounts owed by 
association undertakings. 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise bank loans, trade creditors 
and other creditors. 

Loan Finance Issue Costs 
These are amortised over the life of the related loan. Loans are stated in the 
Statement of Financial Position at the amount of the net proceeds after issue, plus 
increases to account for any subsequent amounts amortised. Where loans are 
redeemed during the year, any redemption penalty and any connected loan finance 
issue costs are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year 
in which the redemption took place. 

Loan Breakage Costs 
Any breakage cost which are not cash settled when first incurred are included in 
lenders' future margins and are therefore paid over the remaining life of the loan. 
The breakage cost is provided for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when 
first incurred and released over the life of the loan with the effect of reducing future 
year interest payable charges accordingly. 
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2. Accounting Policies (continued) 
Loan Prepayment. 

The Group's debt has been treated as "basic" in accordance with paragraphs 11.8 
and 11.9 of FRS 102. The Group has some fixed rate loans which have a two-way 
break clause (i.e. in addition to compensation being payable by a borrower to a 
lender if a loan is prepaid where the prevailing fixed rate is lower than the existing 
loan's fixed rate, compensation could be payable by the lender to the borrower in 
the event that a loan is prepaid and the prevailing fixed rate is higher than the 
existing loan's fixed rate). The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) issued a 
statement on 2 June 2016 in respect of such loans with no prescriptive direction as 
to whether they should be classified as "basic" or "non basic". On the grounds that 
the Group believes the recognition of each debt liability at cost provides a more 
transparent and understandable position of the Group's financial position and that 
each loan still satisfies the requirements of paragraphs 11.8 and 11.9 of FRS 102, 
the Group has retained its "basic" treatment of its debt following the FRC 
announcement. 

Revenue Reserves 
There are several reasons why the Group needs to generate reserves: 

• to provide a cushion against risk and uncertainty of future operations; 
• to finance future major repairs and improvements; and 
• to provide internal subsidy for new homes and property development. 

Due to the reduction in Social Housing Grant (SHG) and other capital grants 
available to the sector over recent years, the Group needs to commit more of their 
reserves to financing investment in new homes and larger maintenance 
programmes. This approach not only enables greater investment but it also 
reduces interest costs as further loans can be kept to a minimum. 
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3. Turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus 

GROUP 

2017 
Turnover Cost of Sales Operating Operating 

Expenditure Surplus 

£ '000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Social housing lettings Note 3(a) 73,652 (51,399) 22,253 

Other social housing activities 
Development services 1,931 (2,208) (277) 
Support services 1,371 (1,955) (584) 
Community investment (471) (471) 
First tranche shared ownership sales 2,158 (1,894) 264 
Other 2,311 (1,171) 1,140 

7,771 (1,894) (5,805) 72 

Non-social housing activities 
Other rental income 65 65 
Properties developed for outright sale 250 (184) 66 
External services 1,750 (1,574) (176) 
Other 25 (233) (208) 

2,090 (1,758) (409) (77) 

83,513 (3,652) (57,613) 22,248 

Group 
2016 Restated 

Turnover Cost of Sales Operating Operating 
Expenditure Surplus 

£ '000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Social housing lettings Note 3(a) 73,574 (51,049) 22,525 

Other social housing activities 
Development services 195 (689) (494) 
Support services 1,329 (2,000) (671) 
Community investment (584) (584) 
First tranche shared ownership sales 888 (736) 152 
Other 2,798 (1,229) 1,569 

5,210 (736) (4,502) (28) 

Non-social housing activities 
Other rental income 69 69 
Properties developed for outright sale 575 (390) 185 
External services 656 (597) (59) 
Other 56 (70) (14) 

1,356 (987) (129) 240 

80,140 (1,723) (55,680) 22,737 
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3. Turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus (continued) 

ASSOCIATION 

2017 
Turnover Cost of Sales Operating Operating 

Expenditure Surplus 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Social housing lettings Note 3(a) 54,998 (38,905) 16,093 

Other social housing activities 
Development services 160 (326) (166) 
Support services 1,363 (1,963) (600) 
Community investment (298) (298) 
First tranche shared ownership sales 1,877 (1,688) 189 
Other 2,448 (1,171) 1,277 

5,848 (1,688) (3,758) 402 

Non-social housing activities 
Other rental income 65 65 
Properties developed for outright sale 
External Services 3,717 (3,368) (349) 
Other 25 (233) (208) 

3,807 (3,368) (582) (143) 

64,653 (5,056) (43,245) 16,352 

Association 
2016 Restated 

Turnover Cost of Sales Operating Operating 
Expenditure Surplus 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Social housing lettings Note 3(a) 55,020 (38,292) 16,728 

Other social housing activities 
Development services 145 (333) (188) 
Support services 1,318 (2,000) (682) 
Community investment (293) (293) 
First tranche shared ownership sales 558 (511) 47 
Other 2,054 (1,229) 825 

4,075 (511) (3,855) (291) 

Non-social housing activities 
Other rental income 69 69 
Properties developed for outright sale 
External Services 2,618 (2,381) (237) 
Other 56 (70) (14) 

2,743 (2,381) (307) 55 

61,838 (2,892) (42,454) 16,492 
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3. (a) Turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus (continued) 

GROUP - Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings 

2017 2016 Restated 
General Supported and Shared Total Total 
Housing Sheltered Housing Ownership 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 Turnover from social housing lettings 

Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges and net 
of voids 60,291 3,783 708 64,782 65,141 Service charges income 3,409 797 392 4,598 4,335 Net rental income 63,700 4,580 1,100 69,380 69,476 

Revenue grants - 59 Amortised government grants 4,124 - 4,124 3,891 Other income 143 4 1 148 148 
Turnover from social housing lettings 67,967 4,584 1,101 73,652 73,574 
Management (8,392) (1,202) (316) (9,91 O) (10,949) Services (4,854) (1,268) (383) (6,505) (6,771) Routine maintenance (14,072) (802) (1) (14,875) (15,308) Planned maintenance (5,191) (632) (22) (5,845) (4,770) Bad debts (423) 13 (410) (407) 
Depreciation of housing properties (13,025) (196) (13,221) (12,811) 
Impairment of housing properties (451) (451) (33) 
Impairment of freehold property (182) (182) 

Operating expenditure on social housing lettings (46,590) (3,891) (918) (51,399) (51,049) 
Operating surplus on social housing lettings 21,377 693 183 22,253 22,525 
Void losses 675 67 742 889 

Seventeen shared ownership properties have been let at an intermediate rent on a shorthold tenancy with the intention to secure a shared ownership sale in the 
forseeable future. 
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3. (a) Turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus (continued) 

ASSOCIATION - Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings 

2017 2016 Restated 
General Supported and Shared Total Total 
Housing Sheltered Housing Ownership 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Turnover from social housing lettings 

Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges and net 
of voids 44,077 3,783 708 48,568 48,752 
Service charges income 2,463 797 392 3,652 3,658 
Net rental income 46,540 4,580 1,100 52,220 52,410 

Revenue grants 59 
Amortised government grants 2,630 2,630 2,403 
Other income 143 4 1 148 148 

Turnover from social housing lettings 49,313 4,584 1,101 54,998 55,020 

Management (5,132) (1,208) (317) (6,657) (7,137) 
Services (3,419) (1,271) (384) (5,074) (5,402) 
Routine maintenance (10,436) (805) (1) (11,242) (11,219) 
Planned maintenance (5,206) (633) (22) (5,861) (4,770) 
Bad debts (316) 13 - (303) (291) 
Depreciation of housing properties (9,224) (196) (9,420) (9,426) 
Impairment of housing properties (348) - (348) (47) 

Operating expenditure on social housing lettings (34,081) (3,904) (920) (38,905) (38,292) 

Operating surplus on social housing lettings 15,232 680 181 16,093 16,728 

Void losses 470 67 537 595 

Seventeen shared ownership properties have been let at an intermediate rent on a shorthold tenancy with the intention to secure a shared ownership sale in the 
forseeable future. 
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4. Accommodation in management and development 
Group and Association 
At the end of the year accommodation in management for each class of accommodation 
was as follows: 

Group Association 
Restated Restated 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
No. No. No. No. 

General housing - Social Rent 13,567 13,602 9,548 9,669 
General housing - Affordable Rent 1,116 935 962 830 
Care Homes 14 14 14 14 
Sheltered housing/older persons 517 555 473 408 
Supported housing 476 461 476 461 
Shared ownership housing 596 575 588 565 
Market Rented 2 2 1 1 
Market Rented Conversion 1 
Owned and managed by others 32 32 32 32 

Total owned 16,321 16,176 12,095 11,980 

Accommodation managed for others 44 63 44 63 

Total owned and managed 16,365 16,239 12,139 12,043 

5. Operating Surplus 
This is arrived at after charging: 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Depreciation of housing properties 12,759 11,961 8,958 8,578 
Depreciation of housing properties - write off on replacement 462 861 462 848 
Amortisation of Housing Properties (4,123) (3,876) (2,629) (2,388) 
Amortisation of Housing Properties -write off on replacement (1) (15) (1) (15) 
Impairment of housing properties 451 33 348 47 
Impairment of freehold property 182 
Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets 909 1,099 745 722 
Provision for redundancy costs 84 84 
Deficit /(Surplus) on disposal of other tangible fixed assets 12 (25) 12 (25) 
Operating lease rentals: 
- land and buildings 573 609 370 392 
- office equipment, computers and motor vehicles 504 125 496 114 

Auditors' remuneration (excluding VAT): 
- audit of the Group financial statements 27 27 27 27 
- audit of subsidiaries 27 25 

Fees payable to the company's auditor and it's associates for 
other services 
- taxation compliance services 4 6 3 4 
- service charge certification 2 2 2 2 
- other 28 4 28 4 
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6. Surplus on sale of fixed assets - housing properties 
Group Association 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Proceeds from sale of properties 4,677 3,190 3,878 2,738 
Less: 
Net book value of properties (2,373) (1,127) (2,048) (992) 
Proceeds to be returned to Northumberland (251) (246) (251) (246) 
County Council 
Disposal Proceeds Fund (524) (433) 
Grant written off on disposal 1,196 1,196 
Recyclable grants on disposal (730) (86) (730) (86) 
Administration charges (123) (64) (123) (64) 

Net surplus from sale of properties 1,872 1,667 1,489 1,350 

During the year thirty six properties were sold under Right to Buy and six under Right to 
Acquire. An additional twelve properties were sold through stair-casing; eleven properties 
were disposed on commercial terms and of the ten properties developed for outright sale, 
two were sold in the year and five transferred to housing stock. 
Additionally, 32 properties were stock transferred to Two Castles Housing Association 
Limited. 

7. Interest receivable and other income 
Group 

2017 
£'000 

Interest receivable and other income 

Interest received during the year 

84 

2016 
£'000 

102 

Association 
2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 

53 69 

84 102 53 69 

8. Interest payable and similar charges 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

On bank loans and other loans 7,869 8,162 7,137 7,439 
Loan non-utilisation fees 28 104 28 104 
Release of loan breakage costs (129) (129) (129) (129) 
Interest on RCGF 6 8 6 8 
Interest on DPF 
Interest on service charge reserve accounts 2 2 

7,774 8,147 7,042 7,424 
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9. Employees 
Average monthly number of employees expressed in full time equivalents (calculated 
based on a standard working week of 35 hours): 

Group Association 

2017 2016 2017 2016 

No. No. No. No. 
Housing management & repairs 388 371 282 260 
Administration, finance and other 105 105 71 69 
Development 16 16 13 13 
Housing support and care 36 35 36 35 

545 527 402 377 

The full time equivalent number of key management personnel who received 
remuneration: 

2017 2016 
No. No. 

£50,001 to £60,000 4 
£60,001 to £70,000 9 4 
£70,001 to £80,000 1 1 
£80,001 to £90,000 1 
£90,001 to £100,000 3 4 
£100,001 to £110,000 
£110,001 to £120,000 1 
£120,001 to £140,000 
£140,001 to £150,000 1 
£150,001 to £160,000 1 
£160,001 to £170,000 
£170,001 to £180,000 1 
£180,001 to £220,000 
£220,001 to £230,000 1 

Three other members of staff received in excess of £60,000 but less than £70,000 (2016: 
Nil). 
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9. Employees (continued) 
Employee costs: 

Group Association 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Wages and salaries 15,733 15,395 11,758 11,002 
Social security costs 1,559 1,228 1,189 938 
Other pension costs 1,460 1,472 1,009 1,003 

18,752 18,095 13,956 12,943 
Redundancy Costs 630 328 
SHPS pension recovery plan re- 
measurment 1,946 1,946 

19,382 20,041 14,284 14,889 

The actuarial revaluation of the SHPS pension takes place every three years, the next 
revaluation will take place in September 2017. 

Pension schemes 
The Group's employees are members of the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS), 
Northumberland County Council Pension Fund (NCCPF), Durham County Council Pension 
Fund (DCCPF) or the Social Housing Pension - defined contribution Scheme. The nature of 
each defined benefit scheme is detailed below. 

Social Housing Pension Scheme 
The Association participates in the SHPS Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a multi-employer 
scheme which provides benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The scheme is a 
defined benefit scheme in the UK. lt is not possible for the Association to obtain sufficient 
information to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme. Therefore it 
accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme. 

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which 
came into force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the 
Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting 
Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in 
the UK. 
The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore the company is 
potentially liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable 
to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. 
Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an 
annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme. 
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9. Employees (continued) 

Social Housing Pension Scheme (continued) 
A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out with an effective date of 30 
September 2014. This actuarial valuation was certified on 23 November 2015 and showed 
assets of £3, 123m, liabilities of £4,446m and a deficit of £1,323m. To eliminate this funding 
shortfall, the trustees and the participating employers have agreed that additional 
contributions will be paid, in combination from all employers, to the scheme as follows: 

Deficit contributions: 

Tier 1 £40.6m per annum 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2020: (payable monthly and increasing by 4. 7% each year 

on 1 April) 

Tier 2 £28.6m per annum 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2023: (payable monthly and increasing by 4.7% each year 

on 1 April) 

Tier 3 £32.?m per annum 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2026: (payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year 

on 1 April) 

Tier4 £31.?m per annum 
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2026: (payable monthly and increasing by 3.0% each year 

on 1 April) 

The scheme's previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 
2011; this valuation was certified on 17 December 2012 and showed assets of £2,062m, 
liabilities of £3,097m and a deficit of £1,035m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, payments 
consisted of the Tier 1, 2 & 3 deficit contributions. 

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding 
arrangement, the company recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised 
is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable under the agreement 
that relates to the deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount rate detailed in 
these disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost. 
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9. Employees (continued) 
Present values of provision 

31 March 31 March 31 March 
2017 2016 2015 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Present value of provision 6,079 6,592 5,198 
= = 

Assumptions 

31 March 31 March 31 March 
2017 2016 2015 

% per annum % per annum % per annum 

Rate of discount 1.33 2.06 1.92 

The discount rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used 
to discount the future recovery plan contributions due, would give the same results as using 
a full AA corporate bond yield curve to discount the same recovery plan contributions. 

Reconciliation of opening and closing provisions 

Opening present value of liabilities 
Unwinding of the discount factor (interest 
expense) 
Deficit contributions paid 
Re-measurements - impact of any change in 
assumptions 
Re-measurements - amendments to the 
contribution schedule 

Closing present value of liabilities 

Statement of Comprehensive Income impact 

Interest expense 
Re-measurements - impact of any change in 
assumptions 
Re-measurements - amendments to the 
contribution schedule 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 

6,592 

128 

(810) 

169 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 

5,198 

94 

(606) 

(40) 

1,946 

6,079 6,592 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 

128 

169 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 

94 

(40) 

1,946 
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9. Employees (continued) 
Northumberland County Council Pension Fund 
The Association participates in the Northumberland County Council Pension Fund 
(NCCPF). This is a multi-employer scheme, administered by Northumberland County 
Council under the regulations governing the Local Government Pension Scheme, a defined 
benefit scheme. The most recent formal actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 31 March 
2016 and rolled forward to 31 March 2017 by a qualified independent actuary. 
The employers' contributions to the NCCPF by the Association for the period ended 31 
March 2017 were £143,356 (2016: £145,406) at contribution rates of 25.4% of pensionable 
pay. These amounts have been charged to operating costs. Employers contributions 
towards past service deficit was £182,000. 
Estimated employers' contributions to the NCCPF during the accounting period 
commencing 1 April 2017 are £330,000. 

Financial assumptions used by the actuary 

Discount rate 
RPI Inflation 
CPI Inflation 
Rate of increase in pensions payment 
Rate of general increase in salaries 
Pension accounts revaluation rate 

31 March 
2017 
%pa 
2.5 
3.1 
2.0 
2.0 
3.5 
2.0 

31 March 
2016 
%pa 
3.4 
2.9 
1.8 
1.8 
3.3 
1.8 

Mortality assumptions 
The post-retirement mortality assumptions used to value the benefit obligation at March 
2017 and March 2016 included the following life expectations at the retirement age of 65: 

2017 2016 
No. of No. of 
Years Years 

Retiring today: 
Males 22.8 23.1 
Females 25.0 25.6 
Retiring in 20 years: 
Males 25.0 25.3 
Females 27.2 28.0 

Actual return on plan assets 
Year ended Year ended 

31 March 31 March 
2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 

Actual return on plan assets 2,550 (100) 
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9. Employees (continued) 
Reconciliation of funded status to balance sheet 

As at As at 
31 March 31 March 

2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 

Notional value of assets 13,630 11,080 
Present value of liabilities (15,440) (13,480) 

Deficit (1,810) (2,400) 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation: 
Year ended 

31 March 
2017 
£'000 

Opening present value of liabilities 
Current service cost 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 
Contributions by participants 
Actuarial losses/(gains) on liabilities 
Net benefits paid out 
Changes in assumptions underlying the 
present value of the scheme liabilities 

Closing present value of liabilities 

Changes in the fair value of assets 

Opening fair value of assets 
Interest income on assets 
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on assets 
Contributions by the employer 
Contributions by participants 
Net benefits paid out 

Closing fair value of assets 

13,480 
150 
450 
40 

1,690 
(370) 

15,440 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 

13,790 
170 
440 
40 

(630) 
(330) 

13,480 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 
11,080 

380 
2,170 
330 
40 

(370) 

13,630 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 
11,140 

360 
(460) 
330 
40 

(330) 

11,080 
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9. Employees (continued) 
Analysis of the amount credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 

Current service cost 
Contributions by employer 
Past service costs 

(150) 
330 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 

(170) 
330 

Total income 180 160 

The amount credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income has previously been 
disclosed as other income in Non-Social Housing, in 2017 this was credited to indirect 
overheads and accordingly reallocated across operating expenditure in Note 3(a); 2016 
has been similarly restated. 

Analysis of the amount debited to other finance income 
Year ended 

31 March 
2017 
£'000 

Interest income on assets 
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 

380 
(450) 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 

360 
(440) 

(70) (80) 

Amounts for the current and previous periods are as follows: 
Year Year Year Year Year 

ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 
March March March March March 
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Present value of liabilities 15,440 13,480 13,790 12,110 13,870 
Fair value of assets 13,630 11,080 11,140 9,880 10,240 

Deficit on the scheme (1,810) (2,400) (2,650) (2,230) (3,630) 

Experience adjustments on plan 
assets 2,170 (460) 770 (1,090) 640 
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9. Employees (continued) 
Analysis of amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

2017 
£'000 

Actuarial gain recognised in other comprehensive income 
Actuarial gain due to changes in the assumptions 
underlying the present value of scheme liabilities 

Cumulative actuarial gain recognised in OCI 

480 

2016 
£'000 

170 

480 170 

Movement in net pension (liability) 
2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 

Group share of scheme assets and liabilities at beginning 
of period (2,400) (2,650) 
Contributions paid 330 330 
Current service cost (150) (170) 
Past service cost 
Interest income on assets 380 360 
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (450) (440) 
Actuarial gain 480 170 

Net deficit at 31 March (1,810) (2,400) 

Durham County Council Pension Fund 
The Group participates in the Durham County Council Pension Fund (DCCPF). This is a 
multi-employer scheme, administered by Durham County Council under the regulations 
governing the Local Government Pension Scheme, a defined benefit scheme. The most 
recent formal actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 31 March 2016 and rolled forward to 
31 March 2017 by a qualified independent actuary. 
Estimated employers' contributions to the DCCPF during the accounting period 
commencing 1 April 2017 are £1,390,000 (2016: £820,000) 
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9. Employees (continued) 

Financial assumptions used by the actuary 

Discount rate 
RPI Inflation 
CPI Inflation 
Rate of increase in pensions payment 
Rate of general increase in salaries 
Pension accounts revaluation rate 

As at 
31 March 

2017 
%pa 
2.6 
3.1 
2.0 
2.0 
3.5 
2.0 

As at 
31 March 

2016 
%pa 

3.5 
2.9 
1.8 
1.8 
3.3 
1.8 

Mortality assumptions 
The post-retirement mortality assumptions used to value the benefit obligation at March 
2017 included the following life expectations at the retirement age of 65: 

2017 2016 
No. of No. of 
Years Years 

Retiring today: 
Males 23.2 22.7 
Females 24.9 25.2 
Retiring in 20 years: 
Males 25.4 24.9 
Females 27.2 27.5 

Actual return on plan assets 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 31 March 

2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 

Actual return on plan assets 3,080 (130) 

Reconciliation of funded status to balance sheet 

Notional value of assets 
Present value of liabilities 

Deficit 

As at 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 
20,500 
(28,230) 

(7,730) 

As at 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 
17,330 
(19,670) 

(2,340) 
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9. Employees (continued) 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation: 

Opening present value of liabilities 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Contributions by participants 
Actuarial losses /(gains) on liabilities 
Net benefits paid out 
Past service cost 

Closing present value of liabilities 

Changes in the fair value of assets 

Opening fair value of assets 
Expected return on assets 
Actuarial gains/ (losses) on assets 
Contributions by the employer 
Contributions by participants 
Net benefits paid out 

Closing fair value of assets 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 
19,670 

970 
680 
230 

7,270 
(630) 
40 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 
19,600 

800 
650 
250 

(1,490) 
(340) 
200 

28,230 19,670 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 
17,330 

610 
2,470 
490 
230 
(630) 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 
16,880 

570 
(700) 
670 
250 
(340) 

20,500 17,330 
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9. Employees (continued) 
Analysis of the amount debited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Current service cost 
Contributions by employer 
Past service costs 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 

(970) 
490 
(40) 

Total income 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 

(800) 
670 
(200) 

(520) (330) 

The amount debited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income has previously been 
disclosed as other income in Non-Social Housing, in 2017 this was credited to indirect 
overheads and accordingly reallocated across operating expenditure in Note 3(a); 2016 
has been similarly restated. 

Analysis of the amount credited to other finance income 

Interest income on assets 
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 

610 
(680) 

(70) 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 

570 
(650) 

(80) 

Amounts for the current and previous periods are as follows: 
Year Year Year Year Year 

ended ended ended ended ended 
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Present value of liabilities 28,230 19,670 19,600 16,080 16,750 
Fair value of assets 20,500 17,330 16,880 15, 11 O 14,120 

Deficit on the scheme (7,730) (2,340) (2,720) (970) (2,630) 
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9. Employees (continued) 
Analysis of amount recognised in other comprehensive income 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 

Actuarial (loss)/gain recognised in other 
comprehensive income 
Actuarial gain due to changes in the assumptions 
underlying the present value of scheme liabilities 

Cumulative actuarial (loss)/gain recognised in OCI 

(4,800) 

(4,800) 

Movement in net pension (liability) 

Group share of scheme assets and liabilities at 
beginning of period 
Contributions paid 
Current service cost 
Past service cost 
Interest income on assets 
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 
Actuarial (loss )/gain 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 

790 

790 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£'000 

(2,340) 
490 
(970) 
(40) 
610 
(680) 

(4,800) 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£'000 

(2,720) 
670 
(800) 
(200) 
570 
(650) 
790 

Net deficit at 31 March (7,730) (2,340) 
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1 O. Board members and executive directors 
The emoluments of the non-executive and executive directors (including pension 
contributions), who served during the year were as follows: 

2016/17 
Role Salary/Fee Salary/Fee 

Non Executive Directors 

Jackie Axelby 
Steve Bramwell 

Chair 
Vice Chair 

Allan Bertram 
David Butler * 
Vera Codling * (to 19 July 2016) 
Kehri Ellis 
Hilary Florek 
Steve Moorhouse 
John Williams* (from 20 July 2016) 
Clive Rook 
Barry Scarr 
Roy Ashton (to 15 July 2015) 
Aidan Oswell (to 15 July 2015) 

2015/16 

£ £ 

20,000 15,000 
13,667 10,500 

7,333 5,500 
9,000 9,000 
2,167 6,500 
8,035 5,500 
6,500 6,500 
8,000 8,000 
5,548 
5,500 5,500 
5,500 5,500 

2,667 
1,833 

* Payments to David Butler, Vera Codling and John Williams include payment for 
responsibility as Chair, Vice Chair and Board member respectively, of Cestria Community 
Housing Association. 

Executive Directors 
Group 
The aggregate emoluments of the executive directors for the year amounted to £894,000 
(2016 £852,000) including pension contributions of £67,000 (2016: £75,000). The 
emoluments of the highest paid director, excluding pension contributions, were £223,000 
(2016: £180,000). 

During the year, compensation paid or payable to Directors for loss of office was 
£106,506 (2016: Nil). 

The Group Chief Executive is a member of the Social Housing Pension Scheme. He is 
an ordinary member of the pension scheme and no enhanced or special terms apply. 
The Association does not make any further contribution to an individual pension 
arrangement for the Group Chief Executive. 
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11. Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 
Group 

2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 

Current tax 
UK corporation tax on surplus for 
the year 
Adjustments in respect of prior 
years 

Tax on profits on ordinary 
activities 

17 
(3) 

14 

15 

Association 
2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 

15 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Current tax reconciliation 
Surplus on ordinary activities 
before tax 16,150 16,130 10,652 10,338 

Theoretical tax at UK corporation 
tax rate 20% (2016: 20%) 3,230 3,226 2,130 2,068 

- tax exempt charitable income (3,213; (3,211) (2,130) (2,068) 
Expenses not deductible for tax 
purposes 
Other short term timing 
differences 6 
To claim in prior year (6) 
Adjustments in respect of prior 
years (3; 

Current tax charge 14 15 
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12. Tangible fixed assets - properties 

GROUP - Housing properties Social Social housing Shared Shared Total 
housing properties Ownership Ownership 

properties under properties properties 
held for construction held for under 

letting letting construction 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cost 

At 1 April 2016 581,755 5,096 22,364 674 609,889 
Additions - construction costs 25,737 667 26,404 
Additions - properties acquired 120 120 
Enhancements to completed properties 241 77 318 
Re-classification adjustment (5,144) 4,928 109 107 
Transferred (to )/from current assets (324) (324) 
Capitalised planned maintenance 9,382 25 9,407 
Schemes completed 21,691 (21,691) 1,306 (1,306) 
Disposals - properties (3,352) (16) (542) (3,910) 
Disposals - write off on replacement (2,144) (2,144) 
At 31 March 2017 602,549 14,079 22,990 142 639,760 

Depreciation and impairment 

At 1 April 2016 97,499 1,905 99,404 
Charged in year 12,563 196 12,759 
Impairment charged in year 451 451 
Released on disposal - properties (1,480) (53) (1,533) 
Released on disposal - replacements (1,682) (1,682) 
At 31 March 2017 107,351 2,048 109,399 

Net book value 

At 31 March 2017 495,198 14,079 20,942 142 530,361 
At 31 March 2016 484,256 5,096 20,459 674 510,485 
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12. Tangible fixed assets - properties (continued) 

ASSOCIATION - Housing properties Social Social housing Shared Shared Total 
housing properties Ownership Ownership 

properties under properties properties 
held for construction held for under 
letting letting construction 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Cost 
At 1 April 2016 465,263 9,202 21,952 781 497,198 
Additions - construction costs 19,806 667 20,473 
Additions - properties acquired 120 120 
Enhancements to completed properties 241 77 318 
Re-classification adjustment (113) 113 
Transferred (to) current assets (324) (324) 
Capitalised planned maintenance 4,794 25 4,819 
Schemes completed 16,889 (16,889) 1,306 (1,306) 
Disposals - properties (2,938) (542) (3,480) 
Disposals - write off on replacement (2,144) (2,144) 
At 31 March 2017 482,112 12,144 22,582 142 516,980 

Depreciation and impairment 
At 1 April 2016 92,731 1,906 94,637 
Charged in year 8,772 186 8,958 
Impairment charged in year 348 348 
Released on disposal - properties (1,390) (53) (1,443) 
Released on disposal - replacements (1,682) (1,682) 
At 31 March 2017 98,779 2,039 100,818 

Net book value 
At 31 March 2017 383,333 12,144 20,543 142 416,162 
At 31 March 2016 372,532 9,202 20,046 781 402,561 
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12. Tangible fixed assets - properties (continued) 
Impairment 

Properties have been impaired where the properties are of non-traditional 
construction and therefore have a limited life, have a high void rate or it is probable 
that a plan to regenerate existing properties by demolishing them will go ahead. 
The schemes impaired in the year have been written down to their land book value 
plus one year rental income. 

Group Association 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

At 1 April 872 825 872 825 
Provided during the year 633 47 348 47 

At 31 March 1,505 872 1,220 872 

The total number of housing units impaired is 247 (2016: 109) and 1 office (2016: 
Nil). The carrying values of the properties pre impairment was £2,884,000 and 
£189,000 respectively. 

Improvements to existing properties: 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Capitalised planned maintenance 9,407 10,841 4,819 6,882 
Major repairs expenditure 5,861 4,770 5,861 4,770 

15,268 15,611 10,680 11,652 
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12. Tangible fixed assets - properties (continued) 

Housing properties book value, net of depreciation, and offices net book value 
(note 13) comprises: 

Group Association 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Housing Properties 
Freehold land and buildings 503,843 483,389 389,644 375,465 
Long leasehold land and buildings 24,315 24,634 24,315 24,634 
Short leasehold land and buildings 2,203 2,462 2,203 2,462 

530,361 510,485 416,162 402,561 

Offices 
Freehold land and buildings 3,566 3,868 3,558 3,647 
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13. Tangible fixed assets - other 

GROUP - Other Assets 

Freehold Furniture Computers Motor Leasehold Commercial Plant and Total 
offices fixtures and and office vehicles improvements premises equipment 

fittings equipment 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cost 
At 1 April 2016 4,634 1,575 4,639 1,014 1,033 91 20 13,006 
Additions 9 1,019 28 - 76 1,132 
Disposals - (63) (1,607) (767) (462) (2,899) 
At 31 March 2017 4,634 1,521 4,051 275 571 167 20 11,239 

Depreciation 
At 1 April 2016 766 1,074 2,894 963 573 26 7 6,303 
Charged in year 120 11 O 598 26 47 6 2 909 
Impairment 182 - - - - - 182 
Released on disposal - (63) (1,569) (768) (461) (2,861) 
At 31 March 2017 1,068 1,121 1,923 221 159 32 9 4,533 

Net book value 
At31 March2017 3,566 400 2,128 54 412 135 11 6,706 
At 31 March 2016 3,868 501 1,745 51 460 65 13 6,703 
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13. Tangible fixed assets - other (continued) 

ASSOCIATION - Other Assets 
Freehold Furniture Computers Motor Leasehold Commercial Plant and Total 

offices fixtures and and office vehicles improvements premises equipment 
fittings equipment 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cost 
At 1 April 2016 4,331 972 4,299 50 1,033 64 20 10,769 
Additions - - 1,019 - - 1,019 
Disposals - {63} {1,478} {50} {462} - - (2,053) 
At 31 March 2017 4,331 909 3,840 - 571 64 20 9,735 

Depreciation 
At 1 April 2016 684 840 2,614 48 573 25 7 4,791 
Charged in year 89 50 554 2 47 1 2 745 
Released on disposal - (63) (1,443) (50) (461) (2,017) 
At 31 March 2017 773 827 1,725 - 159 26 9 3,519 

Net book value 
At 31 March 2017 3,558 82 2,115 - 412 38 11 6,216 
At 31 March 2016 3,647 132 1,685 2 460 39 13 5,978 
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14. Investment in subsidiaries 
At 31 March 2017 the lsos Group comprised the parent, lsos Housing Limited, together 
with the following organisations each of which are subsidiaries of the Association 
within the meaning of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014: 

Co-operative 
and Community Homes and 

Benefit Communities 
Applicable Model Societies Act Agency Other Registration 

Organisation Rules Registration Registration and Registered 
Number Number Number 

Cestria Community National Housing 
Housing Association Federation Model 2011 30116R L4514 - 

Limited Rules 
Next Level Memorandum and Registrar of 

Developments Articles of Association - - - Companies - 
Limited Companies Act 1645896 

lsos Developments Memorandum and Registrar of 

Limited Articles of Association - - - Companies - 
Companies Act 04395130 

lsos Complete Memorandum and Registrar of 

Support Limited Articles of Association - - - Companies - 
Companies Act 09475120 

During the year the Association had the following intra-group transactions with lsos 
Developments Limited, a non-regulated entity: 

2017 2016 Allocation Basis 
£ £ 

Management services 32,125 32,125 Percentage of overhead 
costs 

Gift Aid 10,394 Actual Receipt 

42,519 32,125 

During the year the Association had the following intra-group transactions with Cestria 
Community Housing Association: 

2017 2016 Allocation Basis 
£ £ 

Corporate Services 385,588 237,797 Percentage of executive 
team costs 

Management Services 166,836 307,368 Actual costs 

Staff charges (from)/to Cestria (69,199) 87,834 Actual costs 

483,225 632,999 
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14. Investment in subsidiaries (continued) 

During the year the Association had the following intra-group transactions with Next 
Level Developments 

2017 
£ 

Management services 

2016 Allocation Basis 
£ 

4, 153 Actual Costs 

lsos Housing Limited holds 98 ordinary £1 shares in lsos Complete Services Limited 
with the remaining 2 ordinary £1 share held by Two Castles Housing Association and 
Byker Community Trust Limited. lsos Complete Support Limited is a non-profit making, 
cost sharing vehicle which provides gas servicing, repair and installation services and 
business services. During the year the Association had the following intra- group 
transactions: 

2017 2016 Allocation Basis 
£ £ 

Provision of heating, 
maintenance and business 3,368,000 2,381,000 Actual costs 
services 

Management services 349,000 237,000 Percentage of central overheads 

3,717,000 2,618,000 

lsos Complete Services Limited owes lsos Housing Limited £663,819 (2016: 
£454,542) at the year end. 

15. Investments 

HomeBuy loans receivable Group Association 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

1 April 2016 320 320 320 320 
Loans issued in the year 
Loans redeemed during year (29) (29) 
Provisions against non- 
recoverable loans 

-- 
31 March 2017 291 320 291 320 

The loans are repayable when the properties, against which the loans are charged, are 
sold. No interest is charged; however the Association takes the proportion of the sale 
proceeds as agreed at the commencement of the loan and any associate grants are 
recycled. 
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16. Properties for sale 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Completed shared ownership properties 1,345 557 1,345 321 
Shared ownership properties under construction 140 2,316 140 2316 
Completed properties for outright sale 362 916 

1,847 3,789 1,485 2,637 

17. Debtors 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Due within one year 
Rent and service charges receivable 3,382 3,837 2,696 2,455 
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts (1,548) (1,382) (1,076) (948) 

1,834 2,455 1,620 1,507 
Social Housing Grant receivable 311 311 
Other debtors 3,284 2,203 1,162 1,584 
Amounts owed from subsidiary undertakings 1,329 467 
Prepayments and accrued income 1,751 1,911 1,263 1,365 

7,180 6,569 5,685 4,923 

18. Investments 

During the year, the Association took out a loan from Affordable Housing Finance pic. 
The AHF loan value is held in the sinking fund until the completion of any property 
charging. 
Going forward it is a requirement of the AHF loan to maintain a sinking fund to ensure 
compliance with Fixed Asset Value and Net Annual Income. 
The Dexia sinking fund was used to repay the Dexia loan. 

Group Association 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Dexia Sinking Fund 1,119 1,119 
AHF Sinking Fund 40,689 - 40,689 

-- 
40,689 1,119 40,689 1,119 
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19. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Debt (note 24) 1,482 1,474 1,482 1,474 
Trade creditors 2,737 1,960 1,820 1,722 
Rent and service charges received in advance 926 1,186 750 891 
Amounts due to contractors for certified work 387 483 387 483 
Amounts owed to Local Authorities for RTB sales 171 96 171 96 
Amounts owing to subsidiary undertakings 2,117 1,937 
Recycled Capital Grant Fund (note 21) 468 77 468 77 
Disposal Proceeds Fund (note 22) 173 70 173 70 
Other taxation and social security 394 416 303 269 
Other creditors 560 961 560 961 
Accruals and deferred income 7,748 5,934 4,020 3,183 
Service charge creditor 617 525 617 525 
Deferred Capital Grant (note 23) 4,137 3,882 2,629 2,388 
Corporation tax liability 19 15 
SHPS pension liability 766 681 766 681 

20,585 17,760 16,263 14,757 

20. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Debt (note 24) 185,678 164,021 169,678 148,021 
Loan breakage costs (note 24) 1,432 1,561 1,432 1,561 
Loan premium 6,487 207 6,487 207 

Total debt 193,597 165,789 177,597 149,789 
Recycled Capital Grant Fund (note 21) 1,251 1,533 1,251 1,533 
Disposal Proceeds Fund (note 22) 636 282 545 282 
HomeBuy Grant 291 320 291 320 
Other creditors 17 21 17 21 
SHPS pension liability 5,313 5,911 5,313 5,911 

201,105 173,856 185,014 157,856 
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21. Recycled capital grant fund 

Funds pertaining to activities within areas covered by the Housing Communities 
Agency: 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

At 1 April 1,610 1,539 1,610 1,539 

Grants recycled 768 469 768 469 
I n te rest accrued 6 8 6 8 
Withdrawal for development of properties (665) (406) (665) (406) 

Balance at 31 March 1,719 1,610 1,719 1,610 

Further analysed as: 
Grant remaining: 
-in the fund for three years at 31 March 
-in the fund for two years but fewer than three 468 77 468 77 
-in the fund for one year but fewer than two 477 1,056 477 1,056 
-in the fund less than one year 774 477 774 477 

Balance at 31 March 1,719 1,610 1,719 1,610 

22. Disposal proceeds fund 

Funds pertaining to activities within areas covered by the Housing Communities 
Agency: 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

At 1 April 352 240 352 240 
Inputs to DPF: 
Funds recycled 523 111 432 111 
Net PRTB receipts 
Certain proceeds of profit making PRPs 
Interest accrued 
Transfer from other PRPs 
Use/Allocation of funds: 
New Build (66) (66) 
Major repairs and works to existing stock 
Transfers to othe PRPs 
Other 
Repayment of Funds to HCA 

Balance at 31 March 809 352 718 352 

Further analysed as: 
Grant remaining: 
-in the fund for three years at 31 March 3 3 
-in the fund for two years but fewer than three 170 70 170 70 
-in the fund for one year but fewer than two 112 170 112 170 
-in the fund less than one year 524 112 433 112 

Balance at 31 March 809 352 718 352 
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23. Deferred capital grant 
Group Association 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

At 1 April 263,704 260,929 218,008 216,160 
Grant received in the year 3,643 3,089 2,822 2,162 
Transferred (to)/from RCGF (470) (70) (470) (70) 
Grant Write off on disposal (740) (224) (740) (224) 
Grant Write off on Replacement (4) (20) (4) (20) 

At 31 March 2017 266,133 263,704 219,616 218,008 

Grant Amortisation 
At 1 April 36,919 33,147 28,842 26,558 
Amortisation in year 4,123 3,876 2,629 2,388 
Released on disposal - properties (730) (99) (730) (99) 
Released on disposal- replacements (3) (5) (3) (5) 

At 31 March 2017 40,309 36,919 30,738 28,842 

Deferred Capital Grant 
At 31 March 2017 225,824 226,785 188,878 189,166 
At 31 March 2016 226,785 227,782 189,166 189,602 

Further analysed as: 
Amount due to be released: 
-within one year 4,137 3,882 2,629 2,388 
-after one year 221,687 222,903 186,249 186,778 

225,824 226,785 188,878 189,166 

Group Association 
Social housing grant and other grant 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Total accumulated grant receivable at 31 
March was: 
Capital grants 266,133 263,704 219,616 218,008 
Revenue grants 4,005 4,005 4,005 4,005 

270,138 267,709 223,621 222,013 

Capital grants include £4.41 m from the Department of Health and £0.86m from 
Northumberland County Council, for the Manors extra care scheme. 
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24. Debt analysis 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Due within one year 
Bank loans 1,482 1,474 1,482 1,474 

Due after more than one year 
Bank loans 145,778 158,521 129,778 142,521 
THFC debt 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 
AHF debt 34,400 34,400 

187,160 165,495 171,160 149,495 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Within one year 1,482 1,474 1,482 1,474 
Between one and two years 2,283 2,743 2,283 2,743 
Between two and five years 14,795 6,882 11,166 6,882 
After five years 168,600 154,396 156,229 138,396 

187,160 165,495 171,160 149,495 

Breakage costs 

Opening breakage cost 1,561 1,690 1,561 1,690 
Amortised to interest payable (129) (129) (129) (129) 

1,432 1,561 1,432 1,561 

At 31 March 2017 the Group had undrawn loan facilities of £44m (2016: £34m). Bank debt is 
secured by specific charges on the Group's housing, land and buildings and is repayable at rates 
of interest varying between 0.56% and 6.63% in instalments due as detailed above. 
The THFC loans are at a fixed rate of 8.75% but the net effect of amortising the premium 
received with these loans reduces the effective rate to 8%. The loans are repayable by bullet 
instalments in the year 2021. 
The AHF loan is at a fixed rate of 2.89% but the net effect of amortising the premium received 
with these loans reduces the effective rate to 1.99%. The loans are repayable by bullet 
instalments in the year 2043. 
The Group has a £0.25m unsecured overdraft facility, which is repayable on demand. Interest is 
charged at 2% over the banks base rate. 
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24. Debt analysis (continued) 

Financial Instruments 

The Group and Association had the following financial instruments: 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Financial assets that are debt 
instruments measured at 
amortised cost: 

Cash at bank and in hand 10,901 23,492 2,862 17,205 
Investments 40,689 1,119 40,689 1,119 
Homeßuy Loans 291 320 291 320 
Rental and service charge debtors 3,382 3,837 2,696 2,455 
Other debtors 3,284 2,203 1,162 1,584 
Social housing grant receivable 311 311 
Accrued income 656 640 271 320 
Amounts owed from subsidiary 
undertakings 1,329 467 

Financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost: 
Bank loans (187,160) (165,495) (171,160) (149,495) 
Trade creditors (2,737) (1,960) (1,820) (1,722) 
Recycled Capital Grant Fund (1,719) (1,610) (1,719) (1,610) 
Deferred capital grant fund (266,133) (263,704) (219,616) (218,008) 
Disposal proceeds fund (809) (352) (718) (352) 
Homeßuy Grants (291) (320) (291) (320) 
SHPS Pension Deficit (6,079) (6,592) (6,079) (6,592) 
Amounts owed to subsidiary 
undertakings (2,117) (1,937) 
Other Creditors and Accruals (1,863) (2,215) (1,757) (1,923) 
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25. Provisions for liabilities and charges 

Group 

2017 2017 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Lease Re- Total Total 
Cost organisation 

Costs 
At 1 April 96 96 210 
Amounts utilised in the year (96) (96) (114) 
Amounts provided for during the 
year 114 114 

At 31 March 114 114 96 

Association 

2017 2017 2017 
£'000 £'000 £'000 
Lease Re- Total 
Cost organisation 

Costs 
At 1 April 96 96 
Amounts utilised in the year (96) (96) 
Amounts provided for during the 
year 84 84 

At 31 March 84 84 

2016 
£'000 
Total 

210 
(114) 

96 

On 30 March 2007 lsos vacated the office premises of the former Enterprise 5 Housing 
Association Limited held on a 15 year lease. ln these circumstances FRS 102 requires 
the cost of any future rentals which will not be recovered from sub-leasing the property 
to be immediately recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The lease 
expired in January 2017 and the provision was released. 
ln the year the Group commenced a re-organisation, the £114k represents the amount 
payable to staff for loss of office. 
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26. Share capital 

The Association is limited by guarantee and therefore has no share capital. Each 
member (see numbers below) agrees to contribute £1 in the event of the Association 
winding up. 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

Number of members 
At 1 April 10 12 
Joining during the year 1 
Leaving during the year ( 1) (2) 

At 31 March 10 10 

27. Reserves 

Revenue 
Group Reserves Total Reserves 

£'000 £'000 

At 1 April 2016 133,478 133,478 
Surplus for the year 16,136 16,136 
Actuarial (loss) relating to pension scheme (4,320) (4,320) 

At 31 March 2017 145,294 145,294 

At 31 March 2017, the revenue reserve included £9.54million defined benefit pension 
liability (2016: £4. 7 4million). 

Association 

At 1 April 2016 
Surplus for the year 
Actuarial gain relating to pension scheme 

At 31 March 2017 

Revenue 
Reserves Total Reserves 

£'000 £'000 

73,004 73,004 
10,652 10,652 

480 480 

84,136 84,136 
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28. Financial commitments 

Capital expenditure commitments Group Association 
were as follows: 

2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Capital expenditure 
Expenditure contracted for but not 21,685 26,868 17,629 20,544 
provided in the accounts 
Expenditure authorised by the Board, 27,417 36,868 18,649 28,434 
but not contracted 

49,102 63,736 36,278 48,978 

The above commitments will be financed primarily through existing cash balances or 
borrowings, which are available for draw-down under existing loan arrangements, with 
the balance funded through Social Housing Grant. 

Operating leases payable 
The future minimum lease payments which the Group is committed to make under 
operating leases are as follows: 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Land and Buildings: 
Within one year 461 638 232 374 
Two to five years 1,544 1,628 857 931 
Five years or more 567 950 338 516 

2,572 3,216 1,427 1,821 

Vehicles and office equipment: 
Within one year 
Two to five years 
Five years or more 

826 
2,152 

697 
2,389 
227 

2,978 3,313 

581 
1,417 

463 
1,698 

1 

1,998 2,162 

The leases for land and buildings are standard leases and the vehicle leases contain 
no purchase options. 
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28. Financial commitments (continuing) 

Operating leases receivable 
The future minimum lease receivables which the Group is expecting to receive under 
operating leases are as follows: 

Group Association 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Land and Buildings: 
Within one year 75 106 75 106 
Two to five years 134 182 134 182 
Five years or more 126 325 126 325 

335 613 335 613 

The lease for Ambassador House includes a 5 year break clause. 

29. Contingent liabilities 
The Group had no contingent liabilities at 31 March 2017 (2016: £nil). 

30. Related parties 
Three board members of the subsidiary, Cestria Community Housing Association 
Limited, were also tenants. Each tenant Board Member had a standard tenancy 
agreement and was required to fulfil the same obligations and receive the same 
benefits as other tenants. They could not use their position to their advantage. 
Rent charged to the tenant board members during the year was £13,017 (2016: 
£13,115). 
Note 14 - Investment in subsidiaries - provides details of the relationship and 
transactions between Parent and registered and unregistered subsidiaries. 

31. Post Balance Sheet Events 

On 3 April 2017 Isas Housing Limited amalgamated with Cestria Community Housing 
Limited and Derwentside Homes Limited to form a new Housing Association called 
Karbon Homes Limited. 

From 3 April the Board of Karbon Homes became responsible for all matters related to 
the amalgamated entities: Isas Housing Limited, Cestria Community Housing 
Association Limited, Derwentside Homes Limited and their subsidiaries. This includes 
approving the statutory accounts. 

When approving the financial statements the Karbon Homes Board is required to make 
an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. ln doing this the 
Board is required to consider all available information about the future, which is at least 
but not limited to, twelve months from the date when the financial statements are 
approved and signed. 
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